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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of

Jordan International Insurance Company
Public Shareholding Limited Company
Amman - The Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jordan International Insurance
Company “the Company” which comprise the consolidated statement of financlal position as
of December 31, 2016, and the consolidated statement of income and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes In equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Company as at December 31,
2016, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance wlith International Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described In the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the other ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Company’s consolidated financial
statements in Jordan, and we have fuifilled our other ethical responsibilities. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were most significant
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not express a separate opinion on these
matters.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited
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1. Technical Provisions
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Technical provisions are considered a key
audit matter for our audit. Moreover,
technical provisions amounted to o
4,710,797, representing 34% of total
liabilities as at December 31, 2016. The
Company estimates the technical provisions
according to the International Financial
Reporting  Standards  and regulatory
authorities' requirements. These provisions
are calculated based on the Company's
accounting policies, estimates, and claims’
historical information. The Company also

recalculates reinsurers' share of the
technical provisions based on the
agreements  signed with them. The

executive management alsc hires an actuary
and a loss adjustor to periodically review the
adequacy of the technical provisions.

Evaluation of Unlisted Financial Assets
or Listed in an Inactive Markets

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprebensive income represent around
17% of the Company’s total assets as of
December 31, 2016. They reprasent
investments not listed in financial markets,
and financial investments listed in financial
markets not traded actively. These financial
assets should appear at fair value in line
with the requirements of the International
Financial Reporting  Standards. The
Company should determine the fair value of
financial assets based on the |atest available
study to estimate discounted future cash
flows.

Fair value determination of financial assets
requires the Company’'s management to
make several judgments and assessments
and to rely on inputs from other than quoted
prices. Consequently, management’s fair
value estimation of these assets was
considered a key audit mattar.

mermber of Delcitte Touche Tahmatsu Limited

Scope of the Audit to Address the Risk

The audit procedures performed included
understanding the nature of the technical
provisions, testing the adopted system of
internal control, assessing the
reasonableness of the estimates and
assumptions, and the adequacy of the
provisions prepared by management. This is
carried out through testing the technical
provisicns and reinsurers’ share and its
calculation, cbtaining the support of the loss
adjuster and the Company's lawyers, and
comparing it with relevant booked
provisions. In addition, the actuary reports,
from an approved actuary, concerning the
adequacy of the technical provision were
reviewed. Moreover, we assessed the
adequacy and appropriateness of disclosures
on the technical provisions.

Scope of the Audit to Address the Risk

Audit procedures included evaluating
internal  procedures relating to the
determination of the fair value of financial
assets untraded (unlisted) in financial
markets, and financial investments trade in
in-active financial markets as well as testing
their activity. In addition, audit procedures
included evaluating the estimates and
assumption adopted by the Company's
management to determine the fair value of

untraded (unlisted) financial assets.
Moreover, these estimates have been
compared to the requirements of

International Financial Reporting Standards
and discussed in light of available
information.

The audit procedures also included obtaining
expert’s assistance to evaluate the adopted
methodology, appropriateness of evaluation
models, and input used to determine the fair
value of these investments. They also
included reviewing the reasonableness of
the most significant input in the evaluation
process through reviewing investee
companies’ financial statements and other
input, as well as the adequacy of related
disclosure.
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3. Evaluating Reai Estate Investments
Real estate investments represent 21% of
the Company's assets. The Company
should reevaluate its properties when
preparing the consolidated  financial
statements to determine their fair value,
and reflect the impact of any impairment in
value in the consclidated statement of
income, in line with the requirements of
the International Financial Reporting
Standards. Accordingly, the Company
relies on independent real estate experts
to determine the fair value of those
investments and reflect any impairments in
their value in the consolidated statement
of income for that pericd. Consequently,
the estimation of the fair value of these
assets was considered a key audit matter.

4. Accounts Receivabie Impairment
Accounts receivable are considered a key
audit matter as it requires the Company's
management to use assumptions to
estimate their recoverability based on the
customers’ financial positon and related
credit risks. Total accounts receivable
amounted to JD 10,773,119, representing
27% of total assets as of December 31,
20186,

The nature and characteristics of the
Company's accounts receivable are diverse
and include amounts due from
policiesholders, agencies, brokers, and
others, which require setting basis and
using estimates to calculate the provision
for those receivables.

Other Matter

Scope of the Audit to Address the Risk
The audit procedures performed included
understanding the procedures applied by the
Company in evaluating real estate
investments and testing the implemented
internal control procedures, reviewing these
evaluation which are based on the real estate
experts assessments, calculating the average
fair value of those evaluations, recording any
impairment in value in the consolidated
statement of income, if any, and reviewing
the adequacy of the disclosures on the fair
value of real estate investments.

Scope of the Audit to Address the Risk

The audit procedures performed included
understanding the nature of those accounts
receivable and testing the adopted internal
control system for following up o©n and
monitoring credit risks. The procedures also
included reviewing the internal control
procedures relating to calculating the
impairment provision for accounts receivable,
As such, we have studied and understood the
Company's adopted policy for calculating the
provision, evaluated the factors affecting the
calculation, as well as discussed those factors
with executive management. We also
selected a sample of those receivables after
taking into consideration the risks related to
payment and guarantees. In addition, we
discussed with management some
receivables with regard to the customers’
expected cash inflows and the adequacy of
guarantees. Furthermore, we recalculated the
provisions to be taken and reviewed the aging
of receivables, its transactions during the
year and adequacy of related disclosures.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are a trapslation of the statutory
consolidated financial statements in the Arabic to which reference is made.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the

other information in the annual report excluding

the consclidated financial statements and

the independent auditors’ report thereon, which is expected to be made available to us after
the date of our audit report. Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information, and we do not express any form of assurance or conclusion

thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consclidated financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other ipformation and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. '

-3
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Responslibliities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Consolidated Financlal Statements

Management is responsibie for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financiai statements in accordance with IFRS, and for such internal control as management
determines necessary to enabie the preparation of consolidated flnanciai statements that
are free from materiai misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s abiiity to continue as a going concern, disciosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern, and using the going concern basis of accounting uniess
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
reaiistic aiternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsibie for overseeing the Company’s consolidated
financiai reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financlal Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonabie assurance about whether the financiai statements as
a whoig are free from materiai misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high ievei of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs wili aiways detect a
material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individuaily or in the aggregate, they couid reasonabiy be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consoiidated financiai
statements.

As part of an audit In accordance with ISA’s, we exercise professionai judgement and maintain
professionai skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consoiidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materiai
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than the one resuiting from error, as
fraud may invoive coitusion, forgery, intentionai omission, misrepresentations, or
the override of internat controi.

« Obtain an understanding of internai controi relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of internai controi.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and reiated disciosures made by management.

« Conciude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting, and based on the audit evidenced obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists reiated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company’s abiiity to continue as a going concern. If we conciude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conciusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Member of Deloitte Touche Tokmatsu Limited -4 -
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« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financlal
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements _
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

¢ Obtaln sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Company to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements, We are responsible for the directlon,
supervision and performance of the Company’s audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencles in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them ail
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, retated safeguard procedures.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters of most significance in the audit of the consolldated financial statements of the
current year, and are therefore, the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor's report unless law and regulations preclude public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare clrcumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Legal and Other Regulatory Requirements

The Company malntains proper accounting records duly organized and in line with the
accompanying consolldated financial statements and with the consolldated financial
statements presented within the Board of Directors' report. We recommengd that the General
Assembly of Shareholders approve these consolidated financial statements.

A e

Amman - Jordan loltte & Touche {M.E.) - Jordan
February 16, 2017

Deloitte & Touche (M.E.)
Public Accountants
Amman - Jordan
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December 31,
ASSETS Note 2016 2015
10 il
Deposits at banks 3 6,952,908 8,399,558
Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss 4 667,929 341,103
Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income 5 6,692,814 6,948,579
Flnanclal assets at amortized cost 6 667,683 365,000
Real estate Investments 7 8,190,315 8,395,520
Total Investments 23,071 649 24,449,760
Cash on hand and at banks 8 282,770 632,416
Cheques under collection 9 26{1,742 425,638
Accounts receivable - net 10 10,773,119 4,709,345
Reinsurance receivables 11 823,960 769,080
Settlement guarantee fund contribution 12 25,000 25,000
Oue from related parties 36 283,759 312,650
Deferred tax assets 13/b 616,357 588,365
Property and equipment - net 14 2,471,143 2,381,589
Intanglble assets - net 15 200,000 200,000
QOther assets 16 709,587 675,310
TOTAL ASSETS 39,518,086 35,169,163
_LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Unearned premlums reserve - net 2,728,447 1,765,988
Clalms reserve - net 1,941,867 2,156,259
Mathematical reserve - net 17 40,483 42,116
Total Insurance Contracts Liabilltles 4,710,797 3,864,363
Accounts payable 18 1,985,941 1,067,841
Reinsurance payables 19 2,759,040 1,195,060
Accrued expenses 38,322 56,254
Due to related parties 36 - 325,322
Other provisions 20 130,533 182,155
Provision for income tax 13/a 21,583 2,887
Deferred tax llabilltles 13/b 477,807 562,946
Qther fabllities 21 3,766,226 1915,315
TOTAL LIABILITIES 13,890,219 9,172,143
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Authorized and paid-up capital 22 18,150,000 18,150,000
Statutory reserve 23 2,684,654 2,584,294
Speclal reserve 24 2,225 2,225
Difference 'n purchasing non-controlling Interest shares 25 338,613 325,804
Investments revaluation reserve 26 1,511,072 1,781,698
Retalned eamings 27 2,065,256 2,241,752
Total Sharebolders' Equity 24,751,820 25.0185,773
Non-controling Interests 28 876,047 911,247
Total Shareholders' Equity 25,627,867 25,997,020
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 39,518,086 35,169,163
General Manager
Chairman of the Board of Directors

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF
THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .
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AMMAN - JORDAN
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME
For the Year Ended
December 31,
Note 2016 2015
1D 1o
Bevenue,
Gross written premiums 20,412,184 12,833,528
{Less): Re - insurers' share {13,808,360) {B,125,564)
Net written Premiums 6,603,824 4,707,964
Net change in unearned premiums reserve (962,459) (266,454)
Net change in mathematicai provision 1,633 {15,036}
Net Written Premiums 5,642,998 4,426,474
Cammissions revenue 1,354,004 874,570
Gains from financial assets and investments-net 30 1,135,458 1,494,848
Rent ravenug 17,210 17,182
Paolicy issuance fees 690,569 377,884
Credit interest 28 217,772 285,438
Other revenue-Net 31 489,335 551480
Total Revenue 9,548,346 8,027,876
Clalms, Losses and Expenses:
Paid claims 14,557,273 10,111,108
{Less): Recoveries {447,918) (591,588)
Re - insurars' share (8,958 432) (5,296,205)
Met Claims Pald 5,150,923 4,223,315
Net change In claims reserve (114,392) (714,880)
Aliocated empioyees' expenses 32 1,459,847 1,247,571
Allocated general and administrative expenses 33 300,416 283,129
Excess of ioss premiums 13,500 31,500
Cost of policies acquisition 115,815 53,484
Other expenses related ta underwritings 212,914 208,403
Other expenses 131,642 47,222
Fareign currency exchange iosses 170,000 -
Net Claims Paid Cost 7,440,665 5,379,744
Unailocated empioyeeas expenses 32 401,578 249,303
Unaiiocated general and administrative expenses is 616,638 620,316
Depreciation and amortization 113,071 102,295
(Recovered fram) knpalrment in accounts receivabie provisian - net 10 {27,206) 26,128
Other iiabiiities provisions - 5,449
Tatai Expenses 8,544,746 6,383,235
proflt for the year Before Tax 1,003,600 1,644,641
Incame tax expense 9,326 {41,621}
Net Profit for the Year 13/a 1I012I926 1,603,020
Attributabie to:
Company Sharehoigers 1,012,864 1,601,139
Non-controiiing interests 62 1,881
1,012,92_2. 1,603,020
Earnings Per Share for the Year {Basic & Diiuted) 34 Q_L(_)gﬁ_ 0/088
Chairman of the Board of Directors General Manager

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .




JORDAN INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY

(A PUBLIC SHAREHOQLDING LIMITED COMPANY)
AM - DAN

CONSOQLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended

December 31,

Note 2016 2015

D 1D
Profit for the Year 1,012,926 1,603,020
Net change In falr vaiue - financlal assets at fair value through
(270,626) (231)

742,300 1,602,789

comprehensive Income after tax

Total Comprehensive Income

Attributable to:
742,238 1,600,908

62 1,881
742,300 1,602,789

Company's shareholders

Non-controlling interests

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART
OF THESE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM.




- B -

‘WIHL HLIM OVIY 38 IOHS ANV SINIWALY.LS WIONVNL JALVAMOSNOD 353HL 40 Luvd TVADEINI NV 3LNLTISNGD SALON ONIANYWODOY IHL

-9T0Z 11§ 49qIAOSQ JO $B SIPSSE Xe} PRSP PAPLAS3) Tuguasdidal 26E'9TO Ar sapnpu) sbuiwies paulewy -
‘DOD'EE0" T QL 3 UIRAINDA 87| - YSD Ut SIFPIDYIRYS 3U) BI |RUCED s,AUBTILIOD BUI JO %9 FINQLISIP 03 PAp|3ap $eM 3 '9T0Z ‘BT Alerugay uo GundaL SAIqUWassY |RIAUSD AIBUIPIG 34 U0 PASEd s

"% 06 WO sey Auedwod AJeip|sqQns 3u) S0 |EHGED 3y Ul 3NeyS s AudwoD aY) ‘J5A0U0L SPIBPURYS uniodsy {PURLL 1BUDRRLISIUL 3L JO suawannbe a3 01 BLipioade $T0T TE equialad 40 Se saeys
253UL Jo 2njea %004 19U pue (Ausdwod JUFUASIAUT [FUDHEBLIIIUL uepuor) Avedwos AIRIPISHNS U 40 SIBYS 21 40 $9T ‘gg BuyseLPING Jo 1500 Y1 UB3MIBA 0UFYIP SUL RUISIIGIS WA SIKL

STIOES. LPe 116 ELLGBUGE  G9E 58S TRETEa0T  B691BL1  PUBSZE S YBCwesT . O0OOSLET Jea, BY3 §0 puI - BoURleY
- - - {8657990) 865992 - - - - - 1034 ayy Buunp sabueyd
- - - - {pzs'yon) - - - pEs'bat - M85 AOINIMS D) pRUBSURSY

(551°6) {509°vT)}  0GSP¥'S - - - 0s¥'s - - - LJeak ayi Buunp sisasmut
Bug||eQuod-ucl Jo Buiseyand-suasunsnipe J3yo
BRLZOYT 1881 BO5'D09'T - 6ET'TO9'T (12} - - - - FWIDDUT FAISUSYRISWOD |R10L
t1e2) - [§754] - - e - - B - X0] JO 12U - AIISII UOAEN|BAT JUSUASAU| U] BuRYD 13N
0T0'€09°T 188°T SET'T0A'T - BET’TOY'T - - - - - 1834 FYI 4O 1o
9aL’E0Y'PE TL6°EEE ST BLP'ET £96'v58 {oze’6¥} 526'IBLT  vSE'DZE cze't DLL'BIF'Z 000°0ST'BT Jesh ay3 Jo Suuwbag - 3ouejeg
I0Z TE JogWadag) popLd Jeoi 5qt 101

ToeTLI0SE  Lp09L8  OIEIGL YL (S€919 SeaePYT CI0TIS T EIVBEL 5 TSov89C  DODGSLEL 183, 24) 46 PUT - SOURIEG

- - - - Togg’o0oT) - - - 09£ 00T RSl ADINTEYS 01 PaLSuRl|

(esv’ee) (z9g’sc}  6OBZT - - - 608°TT - - - » JeaA ay3 Bupnp sisasEw
BujjjoQuoI-ubuy O Buyseyouand-suaunsnipe Jan0
{ooo’e@0’t} - (oo0's80'T) - (oo0’680°T) - - - - - »«513PIOHIRYS 0] PRINQLASIR SPUSPIAIG

pDoOE'ZHL 29 BET'ZPL Z6h6'LT TLE'vED (929'0:T) - - - - awodU] aasuayadwed |BIDL
ToTo'0L TeTooit} {5T9'0LE) XE] J0 19U - BAIIS3I UOREN|eAs JuBLISIAUL U| abueyD TN
9Z6'TI0’T 9 PIB'ZTD' T T66°LE [a: 247 - - - - - 1224 ayy Jpj Iy
DZO'L66°ST LPTIIE  ELLSEBO'SE S9£°88% IBE'E5Y9'T BEY'THL'T  POB'SZE cei'e 6T BS'Z 00005181 1eah ay) jo Guwibag - 3ouejeg
at ar ar ar ar ar ac ac ar atc £l FE=N D]
1eIoL SSBIU] 1201 paZi|eauun pazi|eay ETNECEY LSAIRYS 1SAIRU] IMISTY BAIRSY [enden SN
Buyienua —TSBujnies poulelsy  vorlenteady Buljjonuod Jej3ads AroIniels n - pted
~UdN JUFLLOSDAUT -uDR
Burseyungd
ul AcUIHIO
- B+ELY 3N
NYOYOL - NYWIWY

DN d ¥




WWD—M
AMMAN - JORDAN
mmﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬂiﬂl‘ﬂmﬂm
For the Year Ended
Decamber 31,
Cnewe 206 2015

Cash flaws from Dperating Achivities: v o
Profit before income tax 1,003,630 1,644,641
Adjustments for:
pepreciation and amartization 113,071 102,295
Profit on sale of property ang equipment (26,408) -
Het change in uneamed premlums resarve 962,459 265,454
Het change In clalms resarve {114,392} {714,880)
ot change In mathematical provisioh {1,637) 15,036
Net change In financiai assets at falr value through profit or [oss 0 72,837 23,600
tlet {profits) on sake of Ananclal assets through peofit of loss k] {184,436} {767)
Impairment In financial assets 3t amartized cost 30 50,000 -
(Recovered from) Impairment In accounts receivabke provision - net 10 (27,206) 26,128
[Released from} various proviskns 20 27,446 79,546
(Gains) an sale of real state Investments (130,697) {155,302)
Forelgn curmency differences$ 170,000 -

Net Operating Cash Flows beafore Changes In Assets and Liabilites 1,914,549 1,287,051
Dacrease (Incraase) In cheques under collection 164,896 (98,579)
{Increase) In ACCAURtS receiveble (5,036,568} (1,568,341)
{Increase) decrease In ralnsurance companles accounts - deblt (54,B70) 51,632
Changa In financlal assets through profit o lass [215,235) 1,134,772
Decrease (increase) in due frorm related parties 28,851 (32,944)
(Increase) In ather assets {14,277 {171,385}
Increasa (decrease) In accounts payable 913,100 {311,228)
(Decrease) increase In due 10 related partes {325,322} 313,435
(Decrease) in ACCruEd EXPENSES {17,932) (42,770)
Incregse In relnsuranch companles accounts - credit 1,563,980 414,253
increase In ather [labllitles 1 ,850,91 1 178,596

Net Cash Flows (used in) from Dperating Activities before Incame Tax Pald and Other Provisions Pald (242,867) 1,166,392
Income tax paid oo credit Interast - (6,031}
Faid and recovered fram other provisions 20 79,068 -

et Cash Flows {used in} fram Operating Activities {321,935) 1,160,361
Cash Bows from Tnvesting Activities:
Purchase of real estate Investments 7 (55,586) (72,054)
Proceeds from sale of real estate ? 378,000 452,000
Change in financial assets at amartlzed cost {352,683) 35,000
Proceeds from of financial assets through comprehensive income - 5,000
{Increase) In depasits at banks (9,252) (1D,392)
Fareign currency differences (170,000} -
(Acqulslition) of property, eaulpment and Intangible assets 14 (264,600} {52,170)
Proceeds from sate of property ang equipment 121,951 1,502
Net Cash Flows {used In) from lnvesting Activities {372,160) 353,886
Cash fiows from Financing Activities:
Dividends to shareholders (1,089,000) -
Change in non-contraliing Interests (22,453). {9,155)

Nat cash (used In) Financing Operations {1,111,453) {9,155)

Net {Decrease) Increase In Cash and Cash Equivalents {1,805,54B) 1,505,092
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year 8,683,002 I 177,910

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of the Year 35 6,877,454 9,683,002

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART
OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEH.
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L - - e R P ety o e
EEEEEMER
EEELHE
AMMAN, - JORDAN
%E%%Eééhr%
Motar Marine and Transportation Aviation Fire and Orher eunlic Labillty Persanal Accldents Medical Toal
Decernber 31, December 31, December 31, December 31, Decemnber 31, pagember 31, pecember 31, Decernber 31,
201G 201% 20E 2015 2018 2015 2018 2015 201% 2015 2018 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
10 m» i b 1) i 5] h[+3 1) k1] m» i k) o 1D b[=] o}

Fald claime 275,053 683,259 451,879 1,458,292 - - 4,002,316 1416806 107,203 16,119 26,200 - 6,723,910 6,171,073 13,626,561 9,747,559
lLetn] REcOverHs 44,013 107,937 .904 25443 - - 12726 54,471 - - - - 372,510 372,593 446 B53 590,394
Local re -4rsurers shar - - - - . L Fid 158,288 - - - - - - 4,228 156,288
Foragn e - Mauren shere 23,638 4,483 452,624 1,347,675 - - 3,505,483 1,034,682 19,321 8,600 23400 - 3,736,903 261,50 B161,567 4,857,034

et Claims Paxd 202 402 572,849 36,551 85,174 - - 59,683 139415 87 BB 7,519 2,800 - 4,514,397 3,336,856 50133915 4,141 Bd3
Bgd. Repored clalma reserve - ehd af the yeer
Resarve for reported dam 1,139,575 1445412 2117755 1,296,523 - - 7,850,522 10,070,996 469,105 617,206 31,772 1,904 520,515 216,600 12,133,244 13.650,541
Regerve for nal repaned claims 25,000 60,000 30,000 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000 25, 000 25,000 - - E63,878 ans 417 773,478 521,417
Lézy' R - rourers’ shan - end of the year 286,659 305,330 1,881,458 1,127.691 - - 7738139 9,957,719 353 498 432,436 27,638 20 BEE, 516 245,607 10,950,028 12,065,003
Recowent 59,288 72,7198 - - - - - - - - - - - - 59,288 72,7139

et Clainrs Reserve - Ena of the Year 818,628 1,117,362 265, 297 200,632 - 154 383 143 277 140,607 2025770 5,134 1,884 517 357 357,610 1902408 2,030,536

Il Ciaimey TEACTIE - ena of the year - reporisd

it cigis reserve - #nd ol the year . repoited

{Lagk) Repored s reserve « baginning of the year
Resarve 1ol repanied claims

Rraerve 107 uptepofied clame

Re - Insuners’ Bhare - EQinning f the year

Recoverist

Net Claims Resarve - Seginng of the Yaar

et claime. rssive - begnrng ol the yaar repored

Pt alarims resarve - begmning 2l they are reportad

et Pand Claans Cost

llrll..l.llllllllllr].l.l.lllll rllrallll[llll[llllrllll[lll_llllr.l[llllrl

793,628 1,067,363 236,207 170,632 - - 124,383 113,27% 115,607 184,770 5134 1,884 197,952 108,400 1473001 1,646,331
25,000 50,000 30,000 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000 25,000 25,000 . - 315405 249,210 429,405 384,210
1445412 2149451 1,298523 52571 - . 10070596 16,551,881 517,206 506,964 1,904 1,97 216,800 169,653 13,550,841 20,301,430
50,000 70,000 30,000 25,000 - - 30,000 30,000 25,080 25,000 . - 386417 311,441 521,417 451,841
305330 1,433 13127841 749239 - . 5557719 16279494 432,436 310,685 20 17 245,607 215,632 12,069,003 17,924,800
72,719 77,479 - - - - - : : - - - - - 72,719 77,479
1,117,363 _L760,538 200,632 199,332 - - 143,277 302,387 209,770 221,273 1,888 1,853 357,610 265167 _ 2,030,536 _ 2,750,852
1,067,363 1,690,539 170832 174332 - . 133,277 272,307 184,770 196,279 1,804 1,853 108,400 109,441 1666326 2,444,931
__spote _ o000 _ 30,600 25,000 - - jgoso 30000 _ 25000 25,000 . - 245,210 155,721 384,210 305,721
803y 03T L2UE 88474 - - _Boses (19,6951, 16,718 {3,9%0) £,050 (63) _4TFranes 342933 4885765 _ 3321727

THE ACCOMPANYING WOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM.
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Life trnvestment Retated Total
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2016 20115 2016 _ 2015

\Written Presriums: o] 1D n his) D (o]
Direct Inguranca 1,005,928 844,449 - - 1,005,928 844,449
Facukative relnsurance acceptad - - - - - -

Gross Eamed Presiums 1,005,928 B44,449 . - 1,005,928 844,449
Less; Foreign seinsurance shetg 742,852 564,962 - - 742,852 564,962
Net Eamed Premiums 263,076 279,987 - - 263.076 279,487
Add: Mathemnatical arovigion-beginring of the year 85,521 53, 4EB - - 85,521 50,488
Less; Reinsursnce share 43,405 23,408 - - 43,405 23,408

Nat Mathematical Provision al Beginning of the Year 42,116 27,080 - - 42,116 27,080
Dedyct. Mathematical provisinn-s and of the year 97,843 85,521 - - 97,843 835,321
Deduct; Reinsuranca share 57,360 43,405 - - 57,360 43,405

Nat Masrenaticat Pravision at End of the Year 40,483 42,116 - - 40,483 42,116

Change in Mathemalical reserve {1,631 15,036 - b {1,631 15,036

Het Eemed Premiums income from Written Premiums 264,709 264,451 - - 264,709 264,451

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .
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Cleima paid
Lagy: Recoverins
Foneign reinsurance share
Net Claims Paid
Dutstanding Claims Pravision al End of tha Year
Reportad
Het reponad
Leps: Reinsurance Shara
et Oul standing Provision at End of the Year
Net Claims provision at the snd of the year - reporiad

Nat Claims provision at tha end of tha year not reporiad

+ Outstanding Claims Provision et Baginning of the year

. oo
N reponad
* Lagy, Reinsurance Share

Net Qutsianding Provision at Beginning of Ihe Year
Reportad
Not reporied

Net Cost of Claims Incurred

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .

Lifa Investment Related Total
Decemnber 31, December 31, December 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
plv) o 1Y) pla] v o

930,712 363,545 - 930,712 363,549
1,065 1,194 - 1,065 1,194
752,639 280,883 - 752,635 280,883
137,008 81,472 - 137,008 81,472
66,233 §7.233 66,233 57,233
32,500 25,000 - 32,500 25,000
59,272 56,510 - 59,272 56,510
39,461 25,723 - 39,461 25,723
24,461 18,223 24,461 18,223
15,000 7,500 15,000 7,500
57,233 49,805 - 57,233 49,805
25,000 15,000 25,000 15,000
56,510 44,318 56,510 44,318
25,723 20,487 25,723 20,487
10,723 8,537 - 10,723 8.937
15,000 11,550 - 15,000 11,550
150,746 86,708 - 150,746 86,708
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ENCED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015
Life Investment Related Total
Depember 21, Decernber 31. December 21,
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
o ] Bl o o D

Nex Eamned Premlums lncome 264,709 264,451 264,709 264,451
Deduct:

Cost of Claims [ncurred 150,746 85,708 150,746 86,708
Add:
Commissions racelved §25 - Sas -
Issueing fees 27440 20,341 27,440 20,341
Other revenues 16,565 5,641 16,585 6,641

Total Revenues 158,523 204,725 158,523 204,725
Deduct: Commissions paid 13,346 2,559 13,346 2,559
Allocated agministrative expenses 201,965 195,640 201,955 199,640
Other expenses 20,221 41,793 20,321 41,793

Total Expenses 235,632 243,992 235,632 243,992

underwrlting {Loss) (J7.109) (m (77,109} 539‘25?]

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM
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STATEMENT OF UNDERWRITING PROFIT FOR LIFE INSURANCE ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended

December 31,

2016 2015
o Jo
ASSETS AND INVESTMENTS
Deposits at banks 100,000 100,000
Total Investments 100,000 100,000
Accounts receivabla 304,994 194,408
Reinsurance receivables 63,659 12,554
Other assata 356 34
Property and equipmant - nat - 4
Total Assets and Investmants 469,009 307,000
IABILITIES and EQUITY
Lighilities
Accounts payable ’ 88,147 71,966
Reinsurance payables 108,550 100,312
Qther fiabilities 20,026 27,350
Technical Provisions:
Outstanding claims provision - net 39,461 25,723
Mathematical provision - net 40,483 42,116
Total Tachnical Provistons - nat 79,944 67,835
Total Liabilities 296,667 267,467
Head office currant account 249,451 78,600
Net (loss) for the year {77,109} (39,267}
Total Equity 172,342 39,533
Total Liabilities and Equity 469,009 307,000

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES CONSTITUTE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THESE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SHOULD BE READ WITH THEM .
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JORDAN INTERNATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY
LICS EHOL LIMITED COMP
AMMAN - JORDAN
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Jordan Internatlonal Insurance Company was established In 1996 and reglstered as a
jordanian public limited shareholding Company under Number (301). Its main branch
address is Amman - Jordan, P.0.BOX 3253 Amman 11181 Jordan. The Company’s
authorized capital is JD 18/150 million divided into 18/150 million shares of JD 1 each,
representing paid-up capital as of December 31, 2016,

Acquiring movable and immovable properties required to operate.
Carrying out all insurance buslness activities.

Investing the surplus fund as deemed by the Company.

- Borrowing needed funds from banks.

B. The accompanying consolidated financlal statements were approved by the Board of
Directors in its meeting dated January 26, 2017 and Is subject to the approval of the
Ministry of Industry and Trade / Insurance Department.

N A N E

is ra n Fl
The consolidated financial statements and its subsidiaries have been prepared
according to the Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
and In accordance with the forms prescribed by the Jordanian Insurance Management.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared according to the historical
cost convention except for the financial assets and liabliities shown at fair value as of
the consolidated financial statements date.

- The reporting currency of the consolidated financial statements is the Jordanian dinar,
which s the functional currency of the Company.

The accounting policies adopted for the current year are consistent with those applied
in the year ended December 31, 2015, except for the effects shown In Note (44-A).

The consolidated financial statements inciude the financial statements of Jordan International
Insurance Company and its subsidiaries after eliminating intergroup transactions:

Pald-in Type of Company's Dabve of
Company Name Capital Owmership Business Location Ownership
Ibda’ For Finandal Investments 2,500,000 100% Brokerage Amman 2005
Jordan Intemational Investment 10,000,000 90/58% Real Estate Amman 2006
Compaty Investments
Tela! Salem Real Estate Company 150,000 100% Real Estate Amman 2012
Investments

Contro! is achieved when the Company has the ability to control the financial and operating
policies of the subsidiaries to obtain benefits from their activities. Additionally, transactions,
balances, revenues, and expenses between the Company and its subsidlaries are eliminated.

- 18 -



The results of the subsidiaries are incorporated into the consolidated statement of income
from the effective date of acquisition, which is the date actual control over the subsidiaries is
assumed by the Company. Moreover, the operating results of the disposed of subsidiaries are
incorporated into the consolidated statement of income up to the effective date of disposal,
which Is the date on which the Company loses control over the subsidiaries.

The financial statements of the subsldiaries are prepared for the same financlal year using the
same accounting policies adopted by the insurance Company.

If the accounting policies adopted by the subsidlaries are different from those used by the
insurance Company, the necessary adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiaries
are made to comply with the accounting policies followed by the insurance Company.

Non - controfling interests represent the portion of owners’ equity not owned by the Company
in the subsidiarles, and are shown in the subsidiaries’ net assets in a separate item in the owners’
equity statement.

The followings are the most signlficant accounting policies adopted during the year ended
December 31, 2016:

Flnancial Assets at Amortized Cost
- Financlal assets at amortized cost are financlal assets when the below conditions are
met:

« The purpose of holding these assets within the context of the business model Is to
collect contractual cash inflows.

« According to the contractual terms of these assets, the cash flows arise on defined
dates and represent only principal and interest payments on these assets.

- Financial assets at amortized cost are recorded at cost upon purchase plus acquisition
expenses. Moreover, the issue premium / discount is amortized, using the effective
interest rate method, and recorded to interest or in its account. Any impairment
provisions resulting from the decline in value of these investments leading to the
recoverability of the assets, or part thereof, are deducted, and any impairment is taken
to the consolldated statement of Income.

- Impairment in financial assets recorded at amortized cost is determined on the basis of
the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the expected cash
flows discounted at the effectlve interest rate.

Reclassification

- Financial assets at amortized cost may be classified to financial assets at fair value
through the Income statement and vice versa. This can be carried out when the
Company changes the business model on which it was established through classifying
those assets as stated above, taking into consideration the following:

- Previously recognized profits, losses, of interest may not be recovered.

- When classifying financial assets whose fair value Is to be measured, their fair
value is determined on the reclassification date. Any gains or losses arising from
the differences between the previously recorded amount and the fair value are
recorded in the consclidated statement of income.

- When classifying financial assets to he measured at amortized cost, they are
recorded at fair value as of the reclassification date.

- 19 -




Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Other financial assets not meeting the criteria of financial assets at amaortized cost are

measured at fair value.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss represent shares, bonds and
debentures are held by the Company for trading and gains from short-term market price
fluctuations.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are initially stated at fair value at the
acquisition date (purchase costs are recorded In the consolidated statement of income
upon purchase). They are subsequently re-measured to fair value as of the date of the
financial statements. Moreover, changes in fair value is recorded in the consolidated
statement of income, including the change in fair value resulting from foreign currency
exchange transactions of non-monetary assets. Gains or losses resulting from the sale of
these financial assets are taken to the consolidated statement of income.

Dividends or incurred interest is recorded in the consolidated statement of income,

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Comprehensive Income
Financial assets at fair value through comprehensive income represent the strategic
investment in companies’ shares as long-term investments, not for trading purposes.

Financial asscts at fair value through comprehensive income are initially recorded at fair
value indluding acquisition costs. They are subsequently re-measured to fair value, The
change in fair value appears in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and in
owners’ equity, including change in fair value resulting from foreign currency exchange
translation of non-monetary assets. Gains or losses from the sale of these financial
assets are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income and owners’
equity. The fair value reserve balance relating to sold equity instruments is transferred
directly to retained earnings and not through the consolidated statement of income.

Dividends are stated in the consolidated income statement unless these dividends clearly
represent a partial recovery of the total investments.

Segmental Information

Business is a group of assets and operations that jointly provide products or services
subject to risks and returns different from those of other business segments, to the effect
that it is measured according to the reports used by the Executive Director and the main
decision maker at the Company.

Geographical sector relates to providing products or services in an economic environment

subject to specific risks and returns different from those operating in other sectors of
other economic environments.
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FI

.Date of Recognition of Financlal Assets

Financial assets are recognized on the trading date (which is the date the Company and its
subsidiaries commit themselves to purchase or sell the financial assets).

Fair Value

Closing market prices {acquiring assets / selling liabilities) in active markets at the date
of the consolidated financial statements represent the fair value of traded financial
derivatives. In case declared market prices do not exist, some financial derivatives are
not actively trading, or the market is inactive, fair value is estimated by one of several
methods including the following:

Comparison with the market value of another financial asset with similar terms and
conditions.

Analysis of future cash flows and expected discounted cash flow based on a rate used for
similar instruments.

Adoption of option pricing models.

The valuation methods aim at providing a fair value reflecting expectations of the markat,
and it takes into consideration market factors, risks and future benefits when estimating
the derivatives value. Moreover, financial assets, the fair value of which cannot be reliabiy
measured, are stated at cost less any impairment.

Impairment in the Value of Financlal Assets

The Company and its subsidiaries review the financial assets recorded values in the
books on the date of the consolidated statement of financial position in order to
determine if there are any indications of impairment in their values individually or in the
form of a portfolio. In case such indications exist, the recoverable value is estimated to
determine the impairment loss,

Impairment is determined as follows:

Impairment in financlal assets recorded at amortized cost represents the difference
between the amount recorded in the books and the present value of the expected cash
flows discounted at the original interest rate.

Impairment in financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and through
comprehensive income which is presented at fair value represent the difference between
book value and fair value,

Impairment in financial assets recorded at cost is determined on the basis of the present
value of the expected cash flows discounted at the prevailing market interest rate
returned on similar instruments.

The Impairment in the value is recorded in the consolidated statement of income, Any
surplus in subsequent periods resulting from pravious declines in the financial assets is taken
to the consolidated statement of income except for the impairment in companies shares
at fair value through comprehensive income statement which is recovered through the
investment revaluation reserve through the consolidated comprehensive income and
consolidated owners’ equity statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances with banks and financial institutions
maturing within three months, less bank overdrafts and restricted funds.
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J.

K.

L.

Reinsurance Accounts

Reinsurers' shares of insurance premiums, paid claims, technical provisions, and all the
rights and obligations resulting from reinsurance based on agreements between the
Company and reinsurers are accounted for on the accrual basis.

Impairment in Reinsurance Assets

In case there is any indication as to the impairment of the reinsurance assets of the
Company, which possesses the reinsured contracts, the Company reduces the present
value of the contracts and records the impairment loss in the consolidated statement of
income. The impairment is only recognized in the following cases:

There is objective evidence resulting from an event that took place after recarding the
reinsurance assets confirming the Company's inability to recover all amounts according to the
contracts terms.

The event has a reliably and clearly measurable effect on the amounts the Company
will recover from the reinsurers,

Acquisition Costs of Insurance Policies

Acquisition costs represent the costs incurred by the Company against selling,
underwriting, or starting new insurance contracts. The acquisition costs are recorded in the
consolidated statement of income,

Real Estate Investments

The real estate investments (excluding land) are stated at cost after deducting accumulated
depreciation. The real estate investments are depreciated at 2% over their useful lives. The
impairment is recorded in the consalidated income statement. Moreover, the operating
revenues and expenses for these investments are recorded in the consalidated statement
of income.

In case the fair value of real estate Investments for which an impairment provision has
been taken in the previous years’ increases, prior impairment losses are recovered for no
more than the cost.

The real estate investments are evaluated in accordance to the decisions issued by the
Insurance Commission, and fair value is disclosed in the real estate investments disclosure.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impalrment losses. Moreover, fixed assets are depreciated when they are
ready for use based on the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives using
the following annual depreciation rates. The depreciation expense is recorded in the
consolidated statement of income:

%
Buildings 2
Equipment , furniture, and fixtures 10- 25
Vehides 15

Depreciation is calculated for readily usable property and equipment when they are being
used for their intended use.

When the recoverable values of property and equipment is less than their carrying
amounts, assets are written down to their recoverable values, and impairment losses are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

The useful lives of property and equipment are reviewed at the end of each year. In case the
expected useful life is different from the expectations determined previously, the change
in estimate is recorded in the following years, being a change in estimates.

Gains or losses on disposal of praperty and equipment, representing the difference
between their sale proceeds and their carrying value, are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income.
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Property and equipment are derecognized when disposed of or when no future benefits
are expected from their use or disposal.

Intanglble Assets

Intangible assets acquired through merger are recorded at fair value upon their
acquisition. However, intangible assets acquired through other than merger are recorded
at cost,

Moreover, intangible assets are classified according to their estimated definite or
indefinite lives. Intangible assets with definite useful lives are amortized over the life of
the asset, and the impairment is recorded in the consolidated statement of income. While
intangible assets with indefinite lives are reviewed for impairment at the date of the financial
statements, and the impairment is recorded in the consolidated statement of income.

Internally generated intangible assets are not capitalized by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Instead, they are taken to the consolidated statement of income in the
same year.

Indications of impairment in the value of intangible assets are reviewed at the date of
the consolidated financial statements. Moreover, their useful lives are reassessed and
adjustments are recorded in the subsequent periods.

Collateralized Flnancial Assets

Collateralized Financlal Assets are those pledged assets to other parties with the right
to use them (sell or re-mortgage). These assets are continuously evaluated according
to the implemeanted accounting policies for each type according to their classification.

Computer Systems and Programs
Computer systems and programs are stated at cost upon acquisition and are amortized
at an annual rate of 25%.

Pravisions

Provislons are recognized when the Company and its subsidiaries have obligations on the
date of the consolidated statement of financial position as a result of past events, it is
probable to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made.

Amounts recognized as provisions represent the best estimate of the amounts required to
settie the obligation as of the date of the consolidated financial statements, taking into
consideration risks and the uncertainty relating to the obligation. When the provision
amount is determined on the basis of the expected cash flows for the settlement of the
current obligation, its current book value represents the present value of these cash flows.

When it is expected that some or all of the economic benefits required from other parties to
settle the provision will be recovered, the receivable is recognized within assets if receipt
of the compensations is actually certain and their values can be reliably measured.

First: Technical Provisions

Technical provisions are taken and maintained according to the regulations of the
Insurance Commission as follows:

The provision for unearned premiums for general insurance activities is calculated
according to the remaining days up to the expiry date of the insurance policy after the
consolidated financial statements date on the basis of a (365) day year except for marine and
land transport insurance in which the provision for unearned premiums is calculated on the
basis of written premiums of the valid policies on the date of the consolidated financial
staterents according to the laws, regulations and instructions issued for this purpose.
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2. The pravision for reported claims is computed by determining the total expected costs
far each claim on an individual basis.

3.  Theincurred but not reported claims are calcuiated based on the Company's experience
and estimates.

4. The unearned premiums provision for life insurance business is calculated based on the
Company's experience and estimates,

5. The life insurance policies mathematical provision is calculated based on actuarial
equations, revised periodically by an independent actuary expert.

6. The premium deficiency provision is calculated based on the Company's experience and
estimates,

Second: Provision for Doubtful Debts

A provision for doubtful debts is taken when there is an objective evidence of the Company and its
subsidiaries inability to recover the whole or part of the claimed debts. The provision is calculated
as the diffarence between the boak value and the recoverable value based on appraved ratios
by the Board of Directors according to the aging of the receivables as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements.

Third: End-of-Service Indemnity Provision
End-of-service indemnity provision is calculated based on the internal regulations prepared
by the Company and its subsidiaries, which is in line with the Jordanian Companies Law.

Annual compensations paid to terminated employees are charged to the end-of-service
indemnity provision when paid. Moreaver, an allowance for the Company's liabilities in
connection with end-of-service compensations is taken, for the Company and its subsidiaries, in
the consolidated statement of income.

R. Liability Adeguacy Test
As of the date of the consclidated statement of financial position, the adequacy and
suitability of the insurance liabilities are evaluated by calculating the present value of future
cash flows of the cutstanding insurance policies.

If the evaluation shows that the present value of the insurance liabilities (various
purchase expenses less suitable and related intangible assets) is inadequate compared to
the expected future cash flows, the deficiency is recorded in full in the statement of
consolidated income.

S. Income Tax
Income tax expenses represent accrued taxes and deferred taxes.

1. Accrued Taxes
Income tax expenses are calculated an the basis of taxable income. Moreaver, taxable
income differs from income declared in the consolidated statement of income because the
latter includes non-taxable revenue or tax axpenses not deductible in the current year
but deductible in subsequent years, accumulated losses acceptable by the tax authorities,
as well as unallowable and non-deductible items.

Taxes are calculated on the basis of the tax rates prescribed by the prevailing laws,
regulations, and instructions in the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan.

2. Deferred Taxes
Deferred taxes are taxes expected to be paid ar recavered as a result of temporary timing
diffarences between the value of the assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the value of the taxable amount. Moreover, defarred taxes are calculated
according to the consolidated statemant of financial position liability method based on the
tax ratas expeacted to be appliaed at the tax settlement date or the realization of the deferred
tax assets.
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The balances of deferred tax assets are reviewed at the consolidated statement of financial
position date and reduced in case they are expected not to be utilized wholly or partially,
settling the taxable obligation or na longer needed.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial iabilities are offset, and the net amount is reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position only when there are legal rights to offset the
recognized amounts, the Company intends to settle them on a net basis, or assets are
realized and fiabilities settled simultaneously.

U. Revenue Recognition
1. Insurance Contracts

Insurance premiums arising from insurance contracts are recorded as revenue for the
year (earned insurance premiums) on the basis of the maturities of time periods and in
accordance with the insurance coverage periods. Unearned insurance premiums from
insurance contracts at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position are
recorded as unearned insurance premiums within liabilities.

Claims and incurred losses settlement expenses are recorded in the consolidated
statement of income based on the expected liability amount of the compensation relating to
the insurance policyholders or other affected parties.

2. Dividends and Interest

3l

Dividends frem investments are recordad when the right of the sharcholder to receive
dividends arises upon the related resalution of the general assembly of shareholders.

Interest income is calculated according to the accrual basis according to the maturities of
the time periods, original principals, and average earned interest rate.

Rent Revenue

Revenue from real estate investments with operating lease contracts are recognized
based on the straight-line method over the contracts’ periods, while the other expenses
are recognized based on the accrual basis.

Commissions Revenue
Commissions on the purchase and sale of shares are recorded when earned.

Expense Recognition

All commiissions and other costs relating to the acquisition of new or renewed insurance
policies are amortized in the consolidated statement of income upon their occurrence.
Other expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.

Insurance Compensations

Insurance compensations represent the claims paid during the year and the change in the
claims provision. The insurance compensations includes all the amounts paid during the year
whether they relate to the current year or previous years. Moreover, outstanding claims
represent the highest estimated amount for the settlement of all claims resulting from
events that took place prior to the consolidated statement of financial position date but
still unsettled at that date. Moreover, outstanding claims are calculated on the basis of
the best information available at the date of the consolidated financial statements and
include the incurred but not reported claims provision.
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Salvage and Subrogation Reimbursements
Estimated return of salvage and subrogation relmbursements are considered in the
measurement of the insurance liability for claims.

General and Administrative Expenses

All distributable general and administrative expenses are charged to each insurance
type separately up to around 80% of the general and administrative expenses to the various
insurance departments on the basis of the earned premiums of each department in
proportion to total premiums.

Employees Expenses

All distributable employees' expenses are allecated to each insurance type separately
up to around 80% of the employees' un-distributable expenses have been allocated
to the various insurance departments on the basis of the earned premiums of each
department in proportion to total premiums.

Foreign Currency
Transactions in foreign currencies during the current year are recorded at the exchange
rates prevailing at the transaction date.

Financial assets and financial liabilities balances denominated in foreign currencies are
translated according to the prevailed average exchange rates issued by the Central Bank of
Jordan at the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Non-monetary assets and non-moenetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at fair value at the date of the determination of their fair value,

Exchange gains or losses resulting therefrom are taken to the conselidated statement of
income.,

Translation differences of non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are posted as part of the change in fair value.

When consolidating financial statements, all assets and liabilities of the Company and its
subsidiaries are translated from the foreign currency {functional) to the reporting currency
according to the average exchange rates published by the Central Bank of Jordan on the
date of the financial statements. Revenues and expenses are translated using the average
exchange rates during the year, and any differences are shown in a separate line item in
the comprehensive income and consolidated owners' equity statements, When one of
these subsidiaries or branches is sold, the related currency differences are taken as
revenues or expenses in the consolidated statement of income.
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Use of Estimates

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements and application of the accounting policies
require the Company's management to perform estimates and judgments that affect the
amounts of the financial assets and liabilities, and disclosures relating to contingent liabilities.
These estimates and judgments also affect revenues, expenses, provisions and investments
revaluation reserve. In particular, the Company’s management and its subsidiaries’ are required
to issue significant judgments to assess expected future cash flows and their timing. The above
-mentioned estimates are based on several assumptions and factors with varying degrees of
estimation and uncertainty. Moreover, the actual results may differ from the estimates due to
changes resuiting from the circumstances and situations of those estimates in the future.

Management believes that the estimates within the consolidated financial statements are
reasonable. The details are as follows:

. A provision for accounts receivable is made according to the various assumptions and bases
adopted by Company’s board of directors and its subsidiaries to evaluate the required
provision as per International Financial Reporting Standards.

. The financial year is charged with its part from income tax according to the prevailing
regulations and the International Financial Reporting Standards.

] Real-estate investments are valued by two independent real estate experts, and its fair
value is disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

» Management pericdically revaluates the productive lives of tangible and intangible
assets for the purpose of calculating annual depreciation and ameortization based on
the general condition of those assets and the estimates of their expected future
productive lives. Any impairment loss is taken to the consolidated statement of income.

. The claims provision and technical provisions are taken based on technical studies and
according to the instructions of the Insurance Commission and actuarial studies.

. A provision for lawsuits against the Company and its subsidiaries is based on a legal
study conducted by the Company's lawyer and its subsidiaries according to which probable
future risks are determined. A review of such studies is performed periadically.

» Management reviews the financial assets, stated at amortized cost, to evaluate any
impairment in their value. Such impairment is taken to the consolidated statement of
income.

] Fair value hierarchy: The Company is required to determine and disclose the level in the
fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorized in their entirety,
segregating fair value measurements in accordance with the levels defined in IFRS.
Differentiating between Level 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements, i.e. assessing
whether inputs are observable and whether the unobservable inputs are significant may
require judgment and a careful analysis of the inputs used to measure fair value, including
consideration of factors specific to the asset or liahbility.
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4, Financi

D its at ks
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

December 31, 2016 2015
Deposits Maturing Deposits Maturing
within Three Over Three
Months Months Total Total
D D D D
Inside Jordan 6,594,684 358,224 6,952,908 8,399,558
Total 6,594,684 358,224 6,952,908 8,399,558

The interest rates on deposits at banks in Jordanian Dinar ranged from 3.25% to 6.5%
and from 0.5% to 2% on USD deposits during the year 2016.

Moreover, collateralized deposits issued to the order of the Director of the Insurance
Commission in addition to his position amounted to 1O 358,224 as of December 31, 2016
and JD 348,972 as of December 31, 2015.
sets at Fair Vajue thr Profit or Loss
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015
1D 1D
Shares listed in Amman Stock Exchange 229,242 220,810
Shares listed in foreign markets 438,687 120,293
Yotal 667,929 341,103

5. Financial Assets at Fair Vajue through Comprehensive Income

These items consist of the following:

December 31,

Number
of Shares 2016 2015
Shares listed in Amman Stock Exchange D o
Shares of International Silica Industries Company * 425,440 902,17¢ 1,157,935
Unlisted Shares in Amman Stock Exchange
Shares of Royal Jordanian Air Academy * 622,913 5,690,644 5,790,644

Total 6,592,814 6,948,579

These shares have been evaluated as per the last available evaluation study for the year
2016

6. Financial Assets at Amortized Cost
This ltem consists of the following:

Debenture bonds of Specialized Investment Compounds*

Governmental bonds (Kingdom of Jordan) **
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December 31,

2016 2015
D D
315,000 365,000
352,683 -
667,683 365,000




*  The maturity of these bonds has been extended for five years to mature on June 6, 2020,
Mareover, an amount of 1D 135,000 has been paid from the value of the bonds up to date,
and interest rate has been changed from 9.5% to 10%. An amount of JD 50,000 has
been recorded as an impairment against these bonds as of December 31, 2016. The detalls
are as follows:

2016 2015
n D
Balance - beginning of the year - -
Added during the year 50,000 -
Balance - End of Year 50,000 -

*¥*  These bonds mature on December 31, 2027 and bear interest at a rate of 5.8%.

7. Real Estate Investments

a.  This item consists of the following:
December 31,

2016 2015
D Jo
Land 7,637,832 7,848,005
Buildings 467,119 467,119
Apartments 120,697 120,697
Wadi Sagra Office 88,433 88,433

8,314,081 8,524,254

Less: Accumulated depreciation (117,640) (103,200)
Impairment in real estate investments* (6,126) (24,834)

8,190,315 8,395,520

* Movement on the provision for impairment In real estate investments was as foliows:

2016 2015
1D D
Balance - heginning of the year 24,834 24,834
Recovered during the year (18,708) -
Balance - End of Year 6,126 24,834

b.  The fair value of real estate investments has been revaluated by two certified evaluators,
and the average market value amounted to JD 10,757,579 as per the last evaluation on
June 30, 2016 and December 31, 2015 for the lands in Al-Qastal. Moreover, the fair value of
real estate has been determined by comparing them with the market valye of similar real
estate investments,
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. Curing the year 2016, some plots of land costing 1D 247,321 have been sold in Telal
Salermn Zone for JD 378,000. This resulted in a gain representing the amount recovered
from real estate impairment of JD 18,708 and 1D 111,971 as gain on the saie of real
estate investments recorded in the consolidated income statement (JD 155,302 for
2015).

. Curing the year 2016, a plot of land in Al-Halabat was purchased for 1D 55,586.

8. n at Banks
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015
D o
Cash on hand 2,946 465,862
Current accounts 278,830 164,629
Current accounts-facilities 994 1,925

282,770 632,416

9. Checks under Collection

This item ccnsists of the following:

Cecember 31,

2016 2015
Jo o
Checks under collection®* 260,742 425,638

260,742 425,638

¥ The maturities of checks under collection extends up to May 30, 2017.
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%k

Accoun eceivable - Net
This item consists of the following:

December 31,

2016 2015
D D

Policyholders 10,662,164 4,534,588
Brokerage customers * 674,732 707,875
Agents 27,963 65,140
Brokers 188,075 66,150
Employees 30,520 39,133
Commercials 105,153 73,712
Other 237,911 403,352

11,926,518 5,889,950
Less: Provision for doubtful debts ** (1,153,399) (1,180,605)
Accounts Receivable - Net 10,773,119 4,709,345

This item includes accounts receivable amounting to JD 654,364 net of interest in
suspense in an amount of JD 15,310 as of December 31, 2016. This resulted from
financing the purchase of shares from hrokerage customers. The purchased shares were
suspended from trading as a result of a merger (JD 15,130 as of December 31, 2015).
This receivable is guaranteed against collateralized shares financed by the subsidiary
company and by postdated checks. Moreover, the subsidiary company has taken full
provision against this receivable, noting that an amount of JD 57,206 was recovered from
this receivable as of December 31, 2016.

Movement on the provision for doubtful debts was as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015
1D D
Balance - beginning of the year 1,180,605 1,154,477
Additions 30,000 26,128
Recoveries from provision (57,206) -
Balance - End of Year 1,153,399 1,180,605




Ageing of receivables is as follows:

Not matured yet
Less than 60 days
61 - S0 days

91 - 180 days

181 - 360 days
More than 360 days

11. Reinsurance Receivables

This item consists of the following:

Local insurance companies

Foreign reinsurance companies

Less: Provision for doubtful debts of insurance companies*

December 31,

2016 2015
D D
7,474,322 1,774,945
903,689 1,348,773
375,671 450,007
877,646 280,207
926,204 560,859
1,368,986 1,475,159
11,926,518 5,889,950
December 31,
2016 2015
D 1D
270,336 188,609
615,086 641,943
885,422 830,552
(61,462) (61,462)
823,960 765,090

The ageing of local reinsurance companies’ accounts is as foliows:

Less than 60 days
61 - 90 days

91 - 180 days

181 - 360 days
More than 360 days
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December 31,

2016 2015
D D
83,307 7,766
30,848 58,567
1,126 -
7,223 2,615
147,832 119,661
270,336 188,609




The ageing of foreign reinsurance companies' accounts is as follows:

December 31,

2016 2015
D D
Less than 60 days 444,632 306,043
61 - 90 days 152,323 111,699
91 - 180 days - 110,348
181 - 360 days 7,046 81,400
More than 360 days 11,085 32,453

615,086 641,943

* The movement on the provision for doubtful debts for insurance companies was as follows:

2016 2015
b D
Balance - beginning of the year 61,462 61,462
Additions - -
Balance - End of Year 61,462 61,462
ok ) antee F Depocsits

The item represents Ibda' for Investments Company (subsidiary company) balance in the
Brokerage Guarantee Fund Deposit in accordance with Article No.(90) of the Securities
Law No.(76) for the year 2002 and the internal regulations of the Brokerage Guarantee
Fund Deposits for the year 2004,

13. Income Tax
a. Income Tax Provision

Movement on the income tax provision was as follows:

2016 2015
Jb D
Balance - beginning of the year 2,887 -
Income tax paid on credit interest - (6,031)
Income tax during the year 18,666 8,918
21,553 2,887
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Income tax in the consolidated statement of income represents the following:

2016 2015
D D
Deferred tax assets 207,777 26,720
Amortized deferred tax assets (179,785) (115,793)
Amortized deferred tax liability - 56,370
Income tax provision for the year (18,666) (8,918)

9,326  (41,621)

- Summary of the accounting profit with taxable income:

2016 2015
1D I
Dividend 1,022,760 1,644,641
Non-deductible tax expense 1,745,931 886,934
Nontaxable income (1,037,950) (2,076,655)
Taxable Income 1,730,741 454,920

. A final tax settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Bepartment up
to the year 2014 for the parent company (Jordan International Insurance Company). The
Company filed its income tax return for the year 2015, however, no final settlement
has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department yet.

. A final settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to
year 2014 for Jordan International Investment Company (subsidiary company).
Moreover, the Company filed its income tax return for the years 2015, however, no
final settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department yet.

. A final settlement with the Income and Sales Tax Department has been reached up
to the year 2014, except the year 2013, of Ibda'a for Financial Investment Company
(subsidiary company). Moreover, the Company filed its income tax return for the year
2015, however, no final settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax
Department yet.

. A final settlement has been reached with the Income and Sales Tax Department up to
the end of the year of 2014, except for the years 2008 and 2009 for Tilal Salem
Company (subsidiary of Jordan International Investment Company). Moreover, the
income tax return was filed for the years 2008, 2009 and 2015, however, no final
tax settlement has been reached yet.

. In the opinion of the Company’s management and its tax consultant, all the
provisions taken in the financial statements are sufficient for ail tax liabilities,

- 34 -



b. Deferred tax assets/liabilities:

This item consists of the following:

Accounts inciuded:

Tax

Pravisian for doubitful debts

Provision for end of sarvice indemnity

Impairment in financial assets through profit or loss
Impairment losses of financlal assets at amortized cost
Provisian for employees’ lawsuits

Impairment in real estate investments

Goodwill impairment losses

Provision for administration bonuses

Contingent liabilities provision

Unreported claims provision

Unused Tax Credits

Gain of financial assets valuation through
comprehensive income

ets

- The movement on deferred tax assets-liabilities was as follows:

Balance at the beginning of the year

Additions
Disposal

Balance - End of Year

Decernber 31,
For the year Ended December 31, 2016 2016 2015
Balance
atBeginning  Amounts Balanceat  Defered  Deferred
of the year Released Additions  Year - End Tax Tax
o) JD JD D o) D
1,242,067 57,206 30,000 1,214,861 289,617 296,146
40,384 22,830 7,446 25,000 6,000 8,877
29,500 - 72,837 102,337 24,329 6,843
- - 50,000 50,000 12,000 -
17,095 5,510 - 11,585 2,782 4,104
24,834 18,708 - 6,126 1,225 4,967
333,196 111,066 - 222,130 53,311 79,967
40,448 35000 20,000 25,448 5890 9,490
68,500 - - 68,500 13,700 13,700
355,711 - BBGYS 444 406 106,299 84,972
330,401 570,050 661,508 421,359 101,249 79299
2,482,136 820,370 930,486 2,592,252 616,357 588,365
2,344,644 355,765 - 1,988,879 477,807 562,946
2,344,644 355,765 - 1,988,879 477,807 562,946
2016 2015
Assats Liabilities Assets Liabilities
JD D 1D D
588,365 562,946 677,438 615,085
207,777 - 26,720 559,040
{179,785) (85,139) (115,793) (115,179)
616,357 477,807 588,365 562,946

Deferred tax assets have been calculated accerding to the applicable rates for Jordan
International Insurance Company and Ibdaa for Financial Investments Company of 24%,
Moreover, deferred tax benefits of Jordan International Investment Company (subsidiary
company) have been taxed at 20% as of December 31, 2014 instead of 14% as of
December 31, 2013 according to the Income Tax Law No. (34) for the year 2014, which
came into effect on January 1, 2015,
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4. Prope and Equi nt
The details of this item are as follows:

Projects
Furniture and Under
land Building Equipment Vehicles Process Total
December 31, 2016 D o D D D D
Balance - beginning of the year 363,068 2,164,069 734,731 224,722 95,715 3,582,305
Additions - - 284,600 - - 484,600
Disposals - - (138,928) {95,715) (234,643)
Balance - End of Year 363,068 2,164,069 1,019,331 85,794 - 3,632,262
Accumuiated deprectation
Balance at the beginning of the year - 338,609 647,898 214,209 - 1,200,716
Deprediation during the year - 43,449 54,627 1,255 - 99,331
Disposals - - - {138,928) -~ {138,928)
Balance - End of Year - 382,058 702,525 76,536 - 1,161,119
Net Book Value - End of Year 363,068 1,782,011 316,806 9,258 - 2,471,143
Projects
Furniture and Under
Land Building Equipment Vehicles Process Total
De r 31, 2015 D D 1D o D D
Balance - beginning of the year 363,068 2,164,069 688,561 235,222 - 3,450,920
Additions - - 46,170 6,000 95,715 147,885
Disposals - - - (16,500) - {16,500)
Balance - End of Year 363,068 2,164,069 734,731 224,722 95,715 3,582,305
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year - 295,852 608,751 222,292 - 1,126,895
Depreciation during the year - 42,757 39,147 6,819 - 88,732
Disposals - - - (14,902) - (14,502)
Balance - End of Year - 338,600 647,898 214,209 - 1,200,716
Net Book Value - End of Year 363,068 1,825,460 86,833 10,513 95,715 2,381,589

Depreciation rate % - 2 10-25 15 -

* Fully depreciated properties and equipment amounted to JD 634,851 as at December 31,
2016 (ID 766,997 as at 31 December, 2015),

- 36 -



5. Intangible Assets - Net

This item represents the brokerage license fees of the subsidiary company (Ibda' Brokerage
Financial Company).

16. Other Assets
This item consists of the following:
December 31,
2016 2015

ilp) D
Refundable deposits 304,328 254,606
Prepaid expenses 52,550 28,173
Medications and medical supplies for claims - 254
Accrued revenues not received 40,245 35,298
Prepaid income tax deposits 62,539 41,441
New system#* 227,451 227,301
Trading settlement 11,734 78,006
Others 10,700 10,231

709,587 675,310

* This figure represents payments for the new system expected to be completed during the

first quarter of the year 2017, and will be capitalized as an intangible asset.

17. Mathematijcal Provisjon - Net
This item consists of the following:

De_cember 31,

2016 2015
D o
Net mathematical provision 42,116 27,080
Life reserve (1,633) 15,036
40,483 42,116
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. A nts Pavable

This item consists of the following:

Medical accounts - credit
Policyholders'

Brokerage customers
Services companies

Garages and car spare part shops payable

Agents payable
Brokerage payables
Employees payable
Other payables

19, Reinsurance Payable

This item censists of the following:

Local insurance companies
Foreign reinsurance companies

20. Other Provisions

This item consists of the following:

For the Year 2016

Provision for end of service indemnity
Provision for employees’ lawsuits
Provision for management remunerations
Provision for contingent liabllities*

Profit sharing of life contracts

December 31,

2016 2015

D D
1,349,361 481,619
399,937 243,659

99,168 162,724
64,178 48,130
7,652 7,652
3,628 2,765
18,715 14,016
5,019 2,544
38,283 104,732

1,985,941 1,067,841

December 31,

2016 2015
D D
139,793 145,049

2,619,247 1,050,011
2,759,040 1,195,060

Balance at the Booked Paid Recavered Balance
Beginning of during the during duringthe  End of the
the Year Year the Year Year Year

JD JD D D D
40,384 7,446 22,830 - 25,000
17,095 - 5,510 - 11,585
40,448 20,000 35,000 - 25,448
68,500 - - - 68,500
15,728 - 15,728 - -

182,155 27,446 79,068 - 130,533
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Dec er 31, 2015

Provision for end-of-service indemnity
Provision for employees’ lawsuits
Provision for management remunerations
Provision for contingent liabilities*
?rofit sharing of life contracts

Balance at the Taken Paid Recovered  Balance
Beginning of during the  duringthe duringthe End of the
the Year Year Year Year Year

D D D D D
16,714 23,670 - - 40,384
17,095 - - - 17,085

- 40,448 - - 40,448

68,500 - - - 68,500

- 15,728 - - 15,728
102,309 79,846 - - 182,155

*  This item represents financial claims by the Free Zones Corporation of ID 68,500,
representing services fees, operational costs and fines related to buildings owned by
Jordan International Investments Company) in Al-Halabat
industrial area. In rejection of the claim, the subsidiary company filed a lawsuit with
Amman Court of First Instance, which is still in the stage of exchanging statements.

the subsidiary company (

1. Other Liabiliti

This item consists of the following:

Reinsurers deposits

Claims under suspense accounts

Other deposits
Unearned revenues
Others

2. uthoriz

Paid up- ital

December 31,

2016 2016
D D
3,155,212 1,444,201
55,047 189,822
529,075 266,609
- 4,584
26,892 10,099
3,766,226 1,915,315

Authorized and paid up-capital amounted to JD 18.15 million distributed over 18.15
million shares, the par value of each is JD 1, as of Decemnber 31, 2016.

3. Statutory Reserv

The amounts in this account represent appropriations from the annual income before

tax at 10% according to the Com

shareholders,

24. Special Reserve

panies Law, This reserve may not be distributed to

This reserve represents the increase in the assets value of merged cormpanies

comprising the capital of the subsidiary company (

Jordan International Investment

Company) after the merger in accordance with the report of the Merger Committee formed
by the Companles Controller.
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. Difference | rchasing of Non-Controlll terest Shar

The Company purchased part of the non-controlling interest shares in the Company so
that the Company’s share in the subsidiary became 90/58 % as of the date of the
consolidated financial statements. The difference of 1D 338,613 has been booked in the
owners' equity as of December 31, 2016, representing the difference between amounts
paid and the shares’ portion of net assets purchased for the years 2011, 2012, 2013,
2014, 2015 & 2016 as per the International Standard No. (3) {amended in the year 2008)
related to business mergers.

26. Investments Evaiuation Reserve

This item represents the net change in the financial assets at fair value through
comprehensive income as follows:

2016 2016
D D
Balance - beginning of the year 1,781,698 1,781,929
Change during the year (355,782) -
Changes in deferred tax liability 85,156 (231)
Net Change - (231)
Balancc - End of Year 1,511,072 1,781,698
27, Retained Earnings
a - This item consists of the following:
2016 2015
D o
Balance - beginning of the year 2,241,752 805,137
Add: Gain for the year 1,012,864 1,601,139
Less: Transferred to statutory reserve (100,360) {164,524)
Less: Cash dividends * (1,089,000) -
Balance - End of Year 2,065,256 2,241,752

* In the General Assembly’s meeting dated February 18, 2016, it was decided to distribute
6% of the Company’s capital in cash to shareholders-i.e. equivalent to JD 1,089,000,

b - The Board of Directors has racommeanded the distribution of cash dividends of JD
1,089,000 to shareholders (equivalent to 6% of authorized capital) to be paid from
distributable retained earnings subject to the approval of the General Assembly of
Shareholders,
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n-Controjli Interests

This item represents the non-controlling interests of Jordan International Investment

Company in net owners' equity:

Nan- Nan-Contralling

Qwnership Paid - in Statuary  Special Accumulated Profit the Controlling  Controlling Share from Profit
Yo Capital Reserve  Reserve (Losses) Year Interests Interests for the Year
Year - D D o D D b D o
2016 90/58% 10,000,000 29,806 2,225 (672,653) 658 9,350,126 876,047 62
2015 20/22% 10,000,000 28,958 2,225 (672,463) 19,232 9,354,094 911,247 1,881
29, Credit Interest
This item consists of the following:
2016 2015
D D
Interest earned on deposits at banks 196,120 245,425
Financial assets at amortized cost interest 21,652 40,013
Total 217,772 285,438
30. Net Gains from Financjal Assets
This item consists of the following:
2016 2015
D D
Cash dividend returns for financial assets through the profit
or loss 10,925 20,226
Cash dividend returns for financial assets through
comprehensive income 1,063,932 1,497,455
Gain from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 184,438 767
Impairment in value of financial assets at amortized cost {50,000) -
Cumulative change in fair value of financial assets
through profit or loss (72,837) (23,600)
1,136,458 1,494,848
21. Other Revenues - Net
This item consists of the following:
December 31,
2016 2015
D D
Other underwriting revenues * 306,972 346,828
Gain from sale of real estate investments 111,989 155,302
Financial brokerage commissions 26,712 39,949
Other 43,662 9,401
Total 489,335 551,480

*  This item includes marine treaties profits of JD 147,685 from AWRIS.
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. Employees E nses
This item consists of the following:

Salaries and bonuses

Company's share of social security contributions
Employees training & development

Travel and transportation

Medical expenses

Security and protection

End of service indemnity

Employees clothes

Employees Expenses Allocated to Underwriting Accounts
Employees Expenses Unallocated to Underwriting Accounts

. ral and Admini tive Expenses
This item consists of the following:

Technical consultation and fees
Stationery and printing
Governmental and other fees
Rent

Advertisements

Computer expenses
Communication and stamps
Hospitality

Electricity, water and heating
Non-discountable sales tax
Board of Directors' travel expenses
Bank charges

Donations

Subscriptions

Maintenance

Cleaning expenses

Vehicles expenses

Office insurance

Tenders expenses

End of service indemnity

Brokerage commissions
Other expenses

Total

Aliocated general
underwriting

Unallocated general and administrative expense to the
underwriting account

and administrative expenses to the
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December 31,

2016 2015
D 1

1,525,250 1,168,119
170,235 129,350
13,310 19,493
47,557 67,244
81,970 70,194
7,916 18,625
13,913 23,669
1,274 180
1,861,425 1,496,874
1,459,847 1,247,571
401,578 249,303

December 31,

2016 2015
») D
193,451 198,736
117,928 61,420

69,552 50,004
9,640 12,937
28,233 44,811
66,655 65,564
39,200 52,276
25,869 22,644
32,699 50,213
26,443 24,346
61,807 39,600
97,429 54,334
750 670
22,389 77,254
25,845 35,017
26,125 25,474
12,293 16,607
5,740 5,612
7,254 8,299
20,000 35,000
254 1,069
27,498 21,558

917,054 903,445
300,416 283,129
616,638 620,316




34. Earnings per Share for the Year
Profit per share have been computed by dividing net profit for the year by the average
number of shares during the year. The details are as follows:

2016 2015
D D
Net income for the year 1,012,864 1,601,139
Share Share
Welghted average number of shares 18,150,000 18,150,000
JD/share JD/share
Earnings per Share (Baslc and Dliuted) /056 a/a88
35. Cash an sh Equlvalen
This item consists of the following:
December 31,
2016 2015
Cash on hand and at banks 282,770 632,416
Add: Deposits at banks 6,952,908 8,399,558
{Less): Restricted deposits (358,224) (348,972)

6,877,454 8,683,002

36. Transactions with Related Parties
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Company and
subsidiary companies as follows:

Paid - Up Capital

Ownership 2016 2015
D D D
Jordan International Investment Company 90.58% 10,000,000 10,000,000
ibda’ for Financial Investments Company 100% 2,500,000 2,500,000
Telal Salem Real Estate Company 100% 150,000 150,000

As part of the Company’s operations, the Company and its subsidiaries carry out transactions
with thelr Board of Directors’ members and their related parties (companies and individuals)
based on the terms governing such transactions and approved by the Board of Directors. The
following is the summary of the transactions with the related parties:

Related Party Total

Board of Directors members
and their related parties
(companies and individuals) 2016 2015

i D D
On- Consolidated Statement of Financial
Positlon Itermns

Accounts receivable 283,759 283,759 312,650
Accounts payable -

- 325,322
On- Consolidated Statement of Income
and Comprehensive Income
Insurance premiums 206,556 206,556 598,097
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Top Execytive Management Salaries and Bonuses

The salaries and bonuses of the executive management of the Company and its subsidiaries
totaled JD 633,107 for the year ended December 31, 2016 (JD 533,523 for the year ended
December 31, 2015).

7. Risk M me

First: lanat i sures:

The Company manages its risks in various ways through a comprehensive strategy to
mitigate risks, minimize it and establish the right control in order to ensure continuity
of its effectiveness along with a risk control system to achieve the optimum risk-return
balance. The process of risk management includes continuous identification, measurement
and contro! of financial and non-financial risks that might negatively affect the Company’s
performance and reputation, in addition to ensuring effective distribution of the
Company's capital to achieve the optimum risk-return balance. The Company is exposed to
the following risks: market risks, liquidity risks, insurance risks, exchange rate risks, and
interest rate and commission risks.

Second; Quantitative Disclosures:
a. Insurance Risk

. I rance Ri

Risks of any insurance policy represents the probability of occurrence of the insured
accident and the uncertainty of the related claim amou nt due to the nature of the insurance
policy whereby the risks are volatile and unexpected in connection with insurance
policies of a certain insurance class. As regards the application of the probability theory
on pricing and the reserve, the primary risks facing the Company are that incurred claims
and the related payments may exceed the book value of the insurance obligations. This
may happen if the probability and risk of claims are greater than expected. As insurance
accidents are unstable and vary from one year to another, estimates may differ from the
related statistics.

The Company performs all type of life, marine, travel, fire, property, liability,
medical, and aviation insurance through it headquarter located at the 6t circle in
Amman.

Studies have shown that the more similar the insurance policies are, the nearer the
expectations are to the actual loss. Moreover, diversifying the types of insurance risks
covered decreases the probability of the overall insurance loss.

Through its personnel consisting of professionals and administrative staff, the Company
and its subsidiaries provide the best service to its clients. Moreover, a plan has been set
to protect it against probable risks whether natural or unnatural. This requires that the
necessary provisions as well as the necessary technical equipment be made available to
maintain the Company's and its subsidiaries continuity and viability. Hence, the necessity
to set the risk management strategy.

Risk management is the process of measuring and evaluating risks and developing
strategies to manage them, These strategies include transferring the risks to another
party, avoiding and mitigating their negative effects on the Company and its subsidiaries,
in addition to accepting some or all of their consequences. Risk management is divided
into four sections:

First: Material risks such as natural catastrophes, fires, accidents, and other external risks not
relating to the Company's and its subsidiaries’ operations.
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JUN—

gecond: Legal risks resulting from legal claims or a
regulations issued by the Insurance Commissi

Third: Risks arising fram financial matters such as inte

foreign currencies risks, and market risks.

Eourth: Intangible risks that are difficult to identify such as knowl

ny risks arising
on and the relate

from the laws and
d non-compliance.

rest rate risks, insurance risks,

edge risks that occurs

upon the application of inadequate knowledge by an employee. Moreover,

relationships risks accur when there is i
these risks directly reduce the employee's pro
profit, service,

the effectiveness of expenditure,
of gains.

Risk management adopted by the Compan
risks with huge losses and high probability are

and lower probability are {reated later on.

2. Claims Development

The schedules below shows the actual claims (based on
end) compared to the expectations for the past four yea

y and its subsidiaries
treated first wh

accident took place for all insurance types as follows:

nefficien

Mot nsur :
Year in Whi ident rred 2012 2013
D Jo

At the end of the year 4,858,063 3,657,581
After one year 2,569,652 2,001,242
After two years 2,569,652 2,091,242
After three years 2,569,652 2,091,242
After four years 2,569,652 -
Current expectations of cumulative claims 2,569,652 2,091,242
Cumulative payments 2,480,373 2,288,411
Liabilities as stated in the statement

of financial position 89,279 {197,169}
Surplus {Deflcit) 2,288,411 1,566,339

t cooperation with ¢
ductivity In knowled
quality, reputation, and the quality

fients. All of
ge and reduce

relies on prioritizing, 50 that
ile risks with lesser losses

management’s estimates at year-

rs based on the year in which the

2014 2015 2016 Total
0 D D 0

2,149,451 1,445,412 1,139,575 13,250,082
1,464,192 1,170,359 - 7,295,445
1,464,192 - - 6,125,086
- - - 4,660,894
- - - 2,569,652
1,464,192 1,170,359 1,139,575 8,435,020
1 566,339 685,269 275053 7,295,445
(102,147) 485090 _ 864522 1,139,575
685259 275,053 . 5,954,637
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Marine Insurance:

The Year in Which the A C !

December 31, 2016

At the end of the year

After one year

After two years

After three years

After four years

Current expectations of cumulative

daims

Cumulative payments

Liabilities as stated In the statement of
financiai position

Surplus {Deficit)

Fire and Other Insurance:

. jn W Ident
¢ December 31, 2016
At the end of the year
;  After one year
After two years
After three years
After four years
Current expectations of cumulative daims
Cumutative payrments
Liabllitles as stated in the statement
of financial position
Surplus (Deficit)

Aviation Insurance;

Which the Acci
December 31, 2016
At the end of the year
: After one year
 After two years
After three years
. After four years
; Current expectations of cumulative dalms
: Cumulative payments
. Uabilities as stated in the statement
of financial position
© Surplus (Deflicit)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
o D D o 10 o

495,374 1,092,466 921,571 1,298,523 2,117,755 5,925,691

173,964 572,549 2,379,863 806,644 - 3,933,020

173,964 572,549 2,379,863 - - 3,126,376

173,964 572,549 - - - 746,513

173,964 - - - - 173,964

173,964 572,549 2,379,863 806,644 2,117,755 6,050,775
1,141,520 321,410 519,919 1,458,292 491,879 3,933,020
(967,556) 251,139 1,859,944  (651,648) 1,625,876 2,117,755
321,410 519,919  (1,458,292) 491,879 - 1,992,671

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total

v D o 10 o Bl
7,470,023 16,717,946 16,551,881 10,070,996 7,858,522 58,669,368
6,999,859 16,326,377 15,135,072 2,212474 - 40,673,765
6,999,859 10,070,996 3,270,075 - - 20,340,930
2,669,332 4,068,680 - - - 6,738,012
2,669,332 - - - - 2,669,332
2,669,332 4,068,680 3,270,075 2,212,474 7,858,522 20,079,083
5,393,706 470,164 391,569 1,416,806 4,002,316 12,220,561
{3,270,374) 3,598,516 2,878,506 795,668 3,856,206 7,858,522
470,164 391,569 1,416,806 7,855,522 - 17,995,583
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
D D o 10 Bl 10
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bil nce:

e Year i i 2 i rl
December 31, 2016
At the end of the year
After ane year
After two years
After three years
After four years
Current expectations of cumulative claims

Cumulative payments

Liabilities as stated in the statement
financial position

Surplus (Deflicit)

Personal Accidents Insurance:

rin i ide

December 31, 2016

At the end of the year

After ane year

After two years

After three years

After four years

Current expectations of cumulative claims

Cumuiative payments

Liabilities as stated in the statement of
financial positicn
Surplus {Deficit)

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
D D h[») D D
391,017 506,964 483,814 617,206 469,105 2,469,006
125,000 40 94,589 24,056 - 243,685
125,000 40 94,589 - - 219,629
125,000 40 - - - 125,040
125,000 - - - - 125,000
40 94,589 24,056 469,105 712,790
125,000
61,101 54,044 5,218 107,203 16,119 243,685
266,917 506,924 389,225 593,150 469,105 469,105
63,899 (54,004) 89,371  (83,147) - 469,105
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
D D 0 D D
2,050 2,100 1,970 1,904 32,772 40,796
2,050 2,100 1,970 22,972 - 29,092
2,050 2,100 1,970 - - 6,120
2,050 2,100 - - - 4,150
2,050 - - - - 2,050
2,050 2,100 1,070 22,972 32,772 61,864
107 232 2,553 - 26,200 29,092
- - - (21,068) 32,772 32,772
1,943 1,868 (583) 22,972 6572 32,772
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Year in Which t cident T 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 Total
® December 31, 2016 o h[») D D o
. Atthe end of the year 353,494 96,480 169,653 216,800 520,515 1,356,942
ARer one year 353,494 96,480 169,653 216,800 - 836,427
After two years 353,494 96,480 169,653 - - 619,627
After three years 353,494 96,480 - - - 449,974
ARer four years 353,494 - - - - 353,454
Current expectations of cumulative claims 353,494 96,480 169,653 216,800 520,515 1,356,942
Cumulative payments 353,4%94 96,480 169,653 216,800 - 836,427
Liabllities as stated in the statemnent of
financial position - - - - 520,515 520,515
Surplus (Deficit) _ - B _ B 520,515

3. Concentration of Insurance Risk
Concentration of assets and liabilitles according to insurance type is as follows:

) B 2016 2015

N Insurance Type Net Gross Net Gross

i Motor 818,628 1,164,575 1,117,363 1,495,412
Marine 310,066 2,481,696 254,594 1,721,256
Fire and other 135,612 9,607,069 228,033 11,768,808
Third party liability 150,816 661,531 215,882 704,970
Aviation 305 26,461 321 27,867
Personal accident 5,373 33,731 2,111 2,814
Medical 3,210,053 7,810,195 1,978,220 3,300,024
Life 79,944 196,576 67,839 167,754
Total 4,710,797 21,981,834 3,864,363 19,188,905

Concentrating of assets and liabilities according to the geographical and sectional
distribution is as follows:

According to geographical area:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
D D D D

Inside the Kingdom 6,132,945 4,710,797  5/441,745 3,864,363

_ Other Middle East Countries 2,934,34% - 2,603,640 -

Europe 6,993,043 - 6,204,907 -

; Asia * 1,210,700 - 1,074,250 -
Total 17,271,037 4,710,797 15,324,542 3,864,363

*® This item includes all Asian countries except Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan & Middle East
countries.
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The concentration in assets and liabilities related to accounts receivable & payable

according to sectors is as follows:

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
According to Sector: D D D D
Private Sector
Companies and Corporations 11,459,352 4,719,552 5,355,182 2,246,019
Individuals 137,727 25,429 123,253 16,882
Total 11,597,079 4,744,981 5,478,435 2,262,901

4. Reinsurance Risk

As with other insurance companies and for the purpose
risks that may arise from major insurance claims,
course of its aperations, enters into reinsurance contracts with other parties.

the Company,

of reducing expasure to financial
within the normail

in order to reduce its exposure to major losses arising from the insolvency of reinsurance
companies, the Company evaluates the financial pasition of the reinsurance companies it

deals with while monitoring credit concentrations in geog
aconomic components similar to those companies, Moreover,
do not exempt the Company from its obligations towards po

raphic areas and activities or
the reinsurance policies issued
licyholders. As a result, the

Company remains committed to the reinsured claims balance in case the reinsurers are

unable to meet their obligations according to the reinsurance o

ntracts.

In order to reduce exposure to the financial risks that may arise from the major insurance
claims, the Company enters into reinsurance agreements with other parties.

5. ivity of rance Risk
December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Consolidated Owners' Consolidated Owners’
Income Equities Income Equities
o] 0 o D
Consolidated Income 1,010,526 25,625,467 1,603,020 25,997,020
Owmers’ equity
Decrease of gruss premiums by 5% while holding all
gther varables constant (1,020,609) (1,020,609) {641,676} (641,676)
Toal {1Q,083) 24,604,858 961,344 25,355,344
Consolidated income 1,010,526 25,625,467 1,603,020 25,997,020
Owners' equity
Increase of gross claims by 5% while hokding all other
variables constant (727,869) {727,864) (505,5559) (505,555)
Total 282,662 24,897,603 1,097,465 25,491,465
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Finan i

The Company and its subsidiaries follow financial palicies to manage the various risks
within a predefined strategy. Moreover, the Company's management and its subsidiary
monitor and control the risks and perform the optimai strategic allacation of both financial
assets and financial liabilities. Risks inciude interest rate risks, credit risks, foreign
currencies risks, and market risks.

Moreover, the Company follows the financial hedge policy for both financial assets and
financial liabilities whenever the need arises. This hedge relates to the expected future risks.

Market Risks

Market risks is the potential losses that may arise from volatility of the fair value or cash
flows from financial instruments according to the changes in the market prices. Market
risks arise as a result of the existence of open positions in interest rates, foreign currency
exchange rates, and stocks investments prices. T hese risks are monitored according to
specific policies and procedures through specialized committees and responsible
workshops. Market risks also includes interest rate risks, exchange rate risks, and equity
instrument risks.

The following table illustrates the effect of a 5% increase (decrease) in Amman Stock
Exchange index on fair value through the income statement reflected in the consolidated
statement of equity as of the consolidated statement of financial position date. The
sensitivity analysis was prepared on the assumption that share prices move at the same
rate of market index change:

+ 5% (5) %
For the Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
1D 0 D D
Consolidated income statement 33,396 17,055 (33,396) (17,055)
+ 5% (5) %
For the Year Ended December 31,
2016 2015 2016 2015
D D D D
Consolidated owners’ equity 33,396 17,055 (33,396) (17,055)

The Company and its subsidiaries are not exposed to exchange rate risks, as the
financial reconciliations with clients or reinsurers are in jocal currency. The Company's
management believes that the foreign currency risk related to the USD is immaterial since the
Jordanian Dinar (the functional currency} is pegged to the USD.
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rest Ra i
Interest rate risk represents the risks resulting from changes in the financial management
as a result of the change in average interest rates prevailing in the market. Moreover, the
Company and its subsidiaries continually manage their exposure to interest risk, and all
varied considerations such as financing and renewal of the current positions are revalued
continually.

Sensitivity analysis below is determined according to the exposure to interest rates
related to banking sensitivity as of the date of the consolidated statement of financial
position. Eurthermore, the analysis Wwas prepared on the assumption that the
outstanding amount as of the date of the consolidated statement of financial position
was outstanding during the whole year. An increase or decrease of 0/5%, which
represents the Company’s and its subsidiaries management's assessment of the likely
and acceptable change in rates of interest, is used.

For the Year Ended December 31,

2016 2015
+ 5% -(5)% + 5% -(5)%
D D D D
Profit (loss) for the year 36,178 {36,178) 45,160 (45,160)
Consolidated owner's equity 36,178 (36,178) 45,160 (45,160)

Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the inability of the Company and its subsidiaries to provide the funding
necessary to perform its obligations on the due dates. The risk management process
includes the following:

Maintaining highly marketable assets that can be easily liquidated in protection against any
unforeseen shortage in liquidity.

Monitoring liquidity indicators in accordance with the internal requirements and the
requirements of regulatory authorities.

Managing the concentrations and maturity dates of debts.
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December 31, 2016
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Reinsures payables
Accrued expenses
Other pravisions
Income tax provision
Due to related partles
Deferred tax labilities
Other liabilities

Total Liabilitles

Total Assets

December 31, 2015
Liabilities:

Accounts payable

_ Reinsures payables

i Accrued expenses

. Other provisions

i Income tax provision
Due to related parties
Deferred tax liabillties

Other liabilities
Total Liabiiities

Total Assets

4, Forel

The Company’s main operations are in
arises from the fluctuations in the ex
transactions denominated in USD,
currency risk related to the USD is immateri

More Than MoreThan  Mere Than More Than
Less than 1 Month to IManthte 6 Monthto 1yearto3  MoreThan
One Month 3 Months & Months 1 year years Jyears  Without Maturity Total
10 1D o D 1 1D 1D o
- 1,985,941 - - - - - 1,985,941
- 2,759,040 - - - - - 2,759,040
- 38,322 - - - - - 38,322
- 130,533 - - - - - 130,533
- 21,553 - - 21,553
- - - - 477,807 - - 477,807
10,099 4,584 541,503 3,210,040 - - 3,766,226
- 4,945,488 4,584 541,503 3,687,847 - - 9,179,422
7,545,383 826,360 1,018,346 9,880,462 9,027,853 11,019,682 200,000 39,518,086
1,067,841 - - - - - 1,067,841
- 1,195,060 - - - - - 1,195,060
- 56,254 - - - - 56,254
- 182,155 - - - - - 182,155
- 2,887 - - - - - 2,887
- 325,322 - - - - - 325,322
- - - - 562,946 - - 562,946
- 10,095 4 584 226,609 1,634,023 - - 1,915,315
- 2,839,618 4,584 266,609 2,196,969 - - 5,307,780
9,024,105 769,090 1,012,960 3,054,378 9,082,549 11,126,081 200,000 35,169,163
r is

Currency) is pegged to the US Dollar,

5'

Credit risk Is the risk of failure of the other pa
losses to the Company and its subsidiaries. Moreo
the policy of dealing with only cr
losses resulting from failure to m
subsidiaries do not take any guarantees

receivables are not guaranteed.

The Company's and its subsidiaries’ financi
financial assets at fair value through prefit or loss,
statement of comprehensive income,
Moreover, policyholders’ receivables consis

change r
the Company's management
al, as the Jordanian Dinar

editworthy parties, so as
eet commitments. Furthermaore,

cash and cas

governmental parties, large projects, and foreign clients.
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ates related to foreign currency payments. As for
believes that the foreign
(the Company’s functional

rty to fulfil its contractual obligations, causing
ver, the Company and its subsidiaries follow
ta reduce the risk of financial
the Company and its
for collecting trade receivables. Therefore, trade

al assets consist mainly of policyholders,
financia! assets at fair value through the
h equivalents, and other dehit balances.
t of debts due from the locally insured, some



In the opinion of the Company's management, the percentage of uncollected receivables or
part thereof is very low. These receivables represent important concentrations of credit
rlsks in the clients’ geographical areas. Moreover, a strict credit policy is maintained,
whereby every dient account is monitored separately. Client’s concentration per
geographical area is as follows:

raphical A Indebtedness
Inside Jordan 10,773,119
Qutside Jordan -
Total 10,773,119
in S alysi
a. Inf non ompany' erati

For managerial purposes, the Company and its subsidiaries have been organized to
include the following segments: life insurance segment; the general insurance
segment, which includes marine insurance, transportation insurance, fire and damages
insurance, liability insurance, and medicai insurance and other types of insurance;
investments segments, which includes real estate investments, financial investments at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through the comprehensive
income, and financial brokerage segment. Moreover, transactions amang the sectors are
based on the estimated market prices at the same terms given to others.

b. Information on Geographical Distribution
This note represents the geog raphical distribution of the Compa ny's and its subsidiaries
operations. Moreover, the Company and its subsidiaries conduct its operations mainly in
the Hashemite Kingdom of Jordan, representing local operations. The Company and its
subsidiaries conduct international activities as well,

The following is the distribution of the Company's and its subsidiaries revenues, assets,
and capital expenditures according to geographical sector:

Inside Jordan Qutside Jordan Tota!
December 31 December 31 December 31
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
1D 1D 1D D 10 1D
Total revenues 8,194,342 7,064,127 1,354,004 063,749 9,548,346 8,027,876
Total assets 38,464,313 34,282,251 1,053,773 886,912 39,518,086 35,169,163
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The Company's objectives as to the management of capital are as follows:

The Company's managerment and its subsidiaries aim to achieve capital management
objectives through developing the Company’s and its subsidiaries business, achieving
surplus in operating revenues and other revenues, and optimally utilizing avallable
fund resources, to achieve the targeted growth in owners’ equity.

The Company and its subsidiaries take into account the appropriateness between
capital size and the nature of risks that the Company and its subsidiaries are exposed
to, provided that this does not contradict with the prevailing laws and regulations.
Which is reflected in the Company's and its subsidiaries strategic plans and its
estimated budget. The effects of participating in investments on capital adequacy
ratio are taken into consideration, and capital and its adequacy are monitored
continuously. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the regulatory capital is
adequate to achieve the objectives of the Company and its subsidiaries,

Solvency ratio as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

First: Available capital *

Second: Capital required

Capital required against assets risk

Capital required against underwriting liability
Capital required against life insurance risk
Total Capital Requlred

Third: Seolvency ratio (Available capital / required capital)

* The following table shows the available capital:

Primary Capital.

pPaid - up Capital

Statutory reserve

Special reserve

Non-controlling interests

Difference of non-controlling interest shares
Retained eamings

Less: Investment not compatible with investment regulations:
Increase in real estate investments
Investments revaluation reserve

Total Available Capital
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becember 31

2016 2015
1D 1D
28,195,131 28,627,658
7,067,932 5,984,840
598,822 560,286
512,594 381,296
8,179,348 6,926,422
344/71%  413/31%

December 31

2016 2015
D D

18,150,000 18,150,000
2,684,654 2,584,294
2,225 2,225
876,047 911,247
338,613 325,804
2,065,256 2,241,752
2,567,264 2,630,638
1,511,072 1,781,698
28,195,131 28,627,658




The i Ass

The following table shows the analysis o

and Liablliti

their expected period to recovery oF settlement:

December 31, 2016
Assets:
Deposits at banks

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Finandal assets at fair value through the

comprehensive income
Financial assets at amortized cost
Real estate investment
Cash on hand and at banks
Checks under collection
Accounts receivable - net
Reinsurance receivables
Deposit settlement guarantee Fund
Due from related arties
Deferred tax assets
Property and equipment - net
Intangible assets
Qther assets
Total Assets

Liabilities

Unearned premiums provision - net
Claims provision - net
Mathematical provision

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses
Reinsurance payables

Qther revisions
Income tax provision
Due to related parties
Deferred tax liabilities
: Other liabilities

¢ Total llabilities

. Net
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f assets and liabilities according to

Within One  More than One
Year Year Total
D D D
6,594,684 358,224 6,952,908
667,929 - 667,929
- 6,592,814 6,592,814
- 667,683 667,683
- 8,190,315 8,190,315
282,770 - 282,770
260,742 - 260,742
9,619,720 1,153,399 10,773,119
823,960 - 823,960
25,000 - 25,000
283,759 - 283,759
- 616,357 616,357
- 2,471,143 2,471,143
- 200,000 200,000
709,587 - 709,587
19,268,151 20,249,935 39,518,086
2,728,447 - 2,728,447
1,941,867 - 1,941,867
40,483 - 40,483
1,985,941 - 1,985,941
2,759,040 - 2,759,040
38,322 - 38,322
130,533 - 130,533
21,553 - 21,553
- 477,807 477,807
556,186 3,210,040 3,766,226
10,202,372 3,687,847 13,890,219
9,065,779 16,562,088 25,627,867




December 31, 2015

Assets:

Deposits at banks

Financia! assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through the
comprehensive income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Cash an hand and at banks

Real estate investments

Checks under collection

Accounts receivable - net
Reinsurance receivables

Due from related parties

Deposit settlement guarantee Fund
Deferred tax assets

Property and equipment - net
Intangible assets

Other assets

Total Assets

Liabilities

Unearned premiums provision - net
Claims provision - net
Mathematical provision
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Reinsurance payables
Other provisions
Income tax provision
Due to related parties
Deferred tax liabilities
Other liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net
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More than
within One Year One Year Total

D D o
8,050,586 348,972 8,399,558
341,103 - 341,103
- 6,948,579 6,948,579
- 365,000 365.000
- 8,395,520 8,395,520
632,416 - 632,416
425,638 - 425,638
3,528,740 1,180,605 4,709,345
769,090 - 769,090
25,000 - 25,000
312,650 - 312,650
- 588,365 588,365
- 2,381,589 2,381,589
- 200,000 200,000
675,310 - 675,310
14,760,533 20,408,630 35,169,163
1,765,988 - 1,765,988
2,056,259 - 2,056,259
42,116 - 42,116
1,067,841 - 1,067,841
1,195,060 - 1,195,060
56,254 - 56,254
182,155 182,155
2,887 - 2,887
325,322 - 325,322
- 562,946 562,946
281,292 1,634,023 1,915,315
6,975,174 2,156,969 9,172,143
7,785,359 18,211,661 25,997,020




4

4

suits agajnst the Co

a - There are lawsuits against the Company at courts claiming compensation for a

A -

total amount of 1D 3,712,647 as of December 31, 2016. In the opinion of the
Company's management and its lawyer, no obligations shall arise therefrom
exceeding the allocated amounts within the net claims reserve (JD 4,017,692 as of
December 31, 2015).

During the year 2011, a policyholder notified the Company about business
interruption damages. In this regard, a lawsuit was raised against the Company
during 2014 for JO 9 million estimated for fees purposes. Based on the assessment
of the Company’s management, its lawyer, and the loss adjuster, the value of the
claim is JD 3.5 million and the Company's share of this claim amount does not
exceed 1D 2.826 from that claim.

The technical committee formed by the policyholders recommended approval of
the settlement of this claim according to the loss adjustor’s repart.

During the period, the claim was settled with the client for JO 3,533,477,
Moreover, the Company's share from the paid claim amounted to JD 2,853. A
settlement was obtained from the client and the lawsuit against the Company was
dropped.

During the year 2013, a policyholder notified the Company about damages caused
by an accident. According to management's estimate, the value of the claim is
approximately JD 8.7 million. During the year 2016, the clalm was revalued at 1D
2.4 million according to the loss adjustor. During the year 2016, a court warning
was sent to the Company ordering payment of JD 2.826 million. However, the
Company's share form the claim will not exceed JB 766 and no liabilitles in excess of
the amounts taken within the net claims reserve shall arise.

nti nt Liabijlities
The Company was contingently liable for bank guarantees of JD 4,132,064 as of
December 31, 2016.

B - There is a financial ciaim by the Free Zones Corporation for J© 68,500 for operational

services, costs and fines related to buildings owned by the subsidiary (Jordan
International Investment Company) in Al-Halabat industrial area. The subsidiary filed
a lawsuit with Amman Court of First Insurance to prevent @ claim, and the case is
otill in the stage of exchanging statements. In the opinion of the management and
the legal adviser, the Company will not incur any amounts in excess of the allocated
amounts as of December 31, 2016.
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43, Fair Value ﬂierarghx
a, Fair Value of Financi inuously Determined at Fair val

Some of the finandial assets and financial liabilities of the Company are estimated at fair value
at the end of each financial period. The following table provides information about the manner
in which financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (Evaluation methods and input

used):
Relation between
Significant Sigrificart
: Fair Value at Fair Value at Far Value Evaluation Method Intangible Intangible Entries
‘ Financlat assets / liabilities Decernber 31,2016 December 31, 2015 Level and Used Entries Entries and Fair Value
! D D
;Financial assets at fair value
?-,Flnancia| assets at fair value through
%proﬁt or loss
; First Prices listed
 ghares in Corporations 667,929 341,103  level i Firancial Markets N/A N/A
 Total 667,929 341,103
“Firrancial assets at fair value through
E1?0mpr-f.v.hensi.\.re income
Seqond  Discounted cash flow
shares with quoted prices 902,170 1,157,935 Lewe N/A N/A
) Second  Discounted cash flow
shares without quoted prices 5,690,644 5,790,644  Leved N/A N/A
é’otal 6,592,814 6,948,579
+Total Financial Assets at Fair Value 7,260,743 7,289,682

Eair Value of Financial Assets and Finan ial Liabilitie termined at Fair Val
Except for what is stated in the schedule below, we believe that the carrying amount of the
finanhcial assets and financial liabllities stated In the Company’s financial statements
approximates their fair value. Moreover, the Company’s management believes that the book
value of the items below approximates their fair value due to either their short-term maturity
or the re-pricing of interest rates during the year.

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015
Fair Value
Book Value  Fair vaiue  Book Value Fair Value Layer

Financial Assets not Evaluated at fair

value 1D o D 1D 1D
Deposits at banks 6,052,908 6,994,487 8,399,558 8,416,253  Second Level
Real estate investments 8,190,315 10,757,579_ 8,395,520 11,026,158  Second Level

Total 15,143,223 17,752,066 16,795,078 19,442,411

. For the items shown above the fair value of assets and liabilities for the first and second level were
| determined according to agreed upon pricing models that reflects credit risks related to the parties that
. are being dealt with.
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44, Adoption of New and Revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSS)
44. a. New and revised IFRSs applied with no material effect on the financial statements:

The following new and revised IFRSs, which became effective for annual periods beginning on
or after January 1, 2016, have been adopted in these consolidated financial statements. The
application of these revised IFRSs has not had any material impact on the amounts reported for
the current and prior years but may affect the accounting for future transactions or
arrangements.

« IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
« Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements relating to Disclosure Initiative

« Amendments to IFRS 11 Jaint arrangements relating to accounting for acquisitions of interests
in joint operations

. Amendments to IAS 16 Property, plant and Equipment and 1AS 38 Intangible Assets relating
to clarification of acceptable methods of depreciation and amartization

« Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and 1AS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

« Amendments to 1AS 27 Separate Financial Statements relating to accounting investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates to be optionally accounted for using the equity
method in separate financial statements

K « Amendments tec IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities and IAS 28 Investment in Associates and lgint Ventures relating to applying
the consolidation exception for investment entities

aAnnual Improvements to IFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle covering amendments to IFRS 5, IFRS 7,

_ 1AS 19 and IAS 34

44, b, New and revised IFRSs in_issue but not yet effective and not early adopted

" The Company has not yet applied the following néw and revised IFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective:

Effective for annyal periods

New_and revised IFRSs beginning on or after
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2014 - The amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28
2016 Cycle amending IFRS 1, 1IFRS 12 and 1AS 28 are effective for annual periods

s beginning on or after January 1, 2018;

the amendment to IFRS 12 for annual
periods beginning on or after January
1, 2017
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Amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes relating to
the recognition of deferred tax assets for
unrealized losses

. Amendments to 1AS 7 Statement of Cash Flows to
, provide disclosures that enable users of financial
: statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising
; from financing activities.
. IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
~ Advance Consideration
" The interpretation addresses foreign currency
. transactions or parts of transactions where:
« there is consideration denominated or priced

in a foreign currency,

.« the entity recognizes a prepayment assetora

' deferred income liability in respect of that
consideration, in advance of the recognition of
the related asset, expense oF income; and
e the prepayment asset or deferred income
 liability is non-monetary.
Aamendments to IFRS 2 Share Based Payment
regarding classification and measurement of share
pased payment transactions

e

Amendments 1o IFRS 4 Insurancé Contracts:
Relating to the different offective dates of IFRS 9
and the forthcoming new insurance contracts
standard.

2

i Amendments to IAS 40 Investment Property:
i Amends paragraph 57 to state that an entity shali
transfer a property o, O from, investment
property when, and only when, there is evidence
of a change in use. A change of use occurs if
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition
of investment property. A change in
management’s intentions for the use of a property
by itself does not constitute evidence of a change
i inuse, The paragraph has been amended to state
that the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive.

amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures relating to disclosures about the initial
application of 1FRS 9

i

~ IFRS 7 Financial Instruments! Discilosures relating
! to the additional hedge accounting disclosures
(and consequential amendments) resulting from
the introduction of the hedge accounting chapter
in IFRS 9
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IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019
IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize, Measure, present and

disclose leases. The standard provides 3 singie lessee accounting model,

requiring lessees to recognhize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the

lease term is 12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value.

Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's

approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor,

1AS 17.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Effective date
Investments in Associates and Joint ventures (2011) relating to the deferred
treatment of the sale of contribution of assets from and investor to its indefinitely
associate or joint venture.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, 2013 and January 1, 2018 ;
2014) ;
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the f
classification and measurement  of financial assets. IFRS 9 was
subsequently amended in October 2010 to include requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for derecognition,
and in November 2013 to include the new requirements for general hedge
accounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued iD July 2014
mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements
by introducing & ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

A finalized version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for
financial instruments, replacing IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. The standard contains requirements in the following
areas:

.. Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified by ;
reference to the business model within which they are held and their ‘_
contractual cash flow characteristics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9
. introduces a 'fair value through other comprehensive income' category
for certain debt instruments. Financial liabilitles are classified in a
: similar manner to under 1AS 39. However, there are differences in the

requirements applying to the measurement of an entity's own credit

risk.

. Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an ‘expected
credit loss' model for the measurement of the impairment of financlal
assets, so it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have accurred
pefore a credit loss is recognized

. Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting model that is
designed to be more closely aligned with how entities undertake risk
management activities when hedging financial and non-financiai risk
exposures.

. Derecognition: The requirements for the derecognition of financial
assets and liabilities are carried forward from IAS 39.
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Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenué from Contracts with Customers to clarify January 1, 2018
three aspects of the standard (identifying performance obligations, pr‘mcipai

versus agent considerations, and licensing) and to provide some transition

relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

1ERS 15 Revenut from Contracts with Customers Januaty 1, 2018
In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single cormnprehensive

model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts

with customers. 1FRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition

guidance including 1AS 18 Revenue, 1AS 11 Construction Contracts and the

related interpretations when it becomes effactive.

The core principle of IFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to

depict the transfer of promised goads or services to customers in an amount

that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects o be entitled in

exchange for those goods or services. specifically, the standard introduces

a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

. Step2: 1dentify the performance obligations in the contract.

« Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in
the contract.

. StepS: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

under 1ERS 15, an entity recognizes when (or as) a performance obligation
s satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation IS transferred to the customer. Far mare
prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 to deal with specific
gcenarios. Furthermaore, extensive disclosures are required by 1FRS 15.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted
in the Company’s financial statements as and when they are applicable; and adoption of these new
standards, interpretations and amendments, except for IFRS g, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, may have no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company in the period of initial
application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 15 and 1ERS 9 will be adopted in the Company'’s consolidated
financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2018 and that IFRS 16 will be adopted
in the Company's consolidated financial statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2019.

The application of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 may have significant impact on amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Company’s consotidated financial statements in respect of revenue from
contracts with customers; and the Company’'s financial assets and financial liabilities and the
application of 1FRS 16 may have significant impact on amounts reported and disclosures made in the
Company's consolidated financial statements in respect of its leases.

However, it is not practicable t0 submit a reasonable assessment of the consequences of adopting
these standards until the Company prepares a review in this regard.
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